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Explanatory Note

On January 16, 2014, Parametric Sound Corporation (the “Company”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the “Initial 8-K”) to report the completion
of the merger (the “Merger”) of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Paris Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”), with and into VTB Holdings,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“VTBH”), in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 5, 2013, by and
among the Company, VTBH and Merger Sub (the “Merger Agreement”). The Merger closed and became effective (the “Closing”) on January 15, 2014 and,
as a result of the Merger, VTBH is now a direct subsidiary of the Company.

This Amendment No. 1 (this “Amendment”) is being filed to amend and supplement Item 9.01 of the Initial 8-K and to include the historical financial
statements of VTBH and its subsidiaries. Although VTBH is now a direct subsidiary of the Company, for accounting purposes the Merger is treated as a
“reverse acquisition” and VTBH is considered the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, as of the Closing, VTBH’s historical results of operations will replace
the Company’s historical results of operations for all periods prior to the Merger, and for all periods following the Merger, the results of operations of both
companies will be included in the Company’s financial statements. However, the audited consolidated financial statements of VTBH for the year ended
December 31, 2013 filed with this Amendment relate to a pre-Closing period, and therefore all information presented, including any per share information,
relates to VTBH and its subsidiaries on a standalone basis and not to the Company.

Any information required to be set forth in the Initial 8-K which is not being amended or supplemented pursuant to this Amendment is hereby
incorporated by reference. Except as set forth herein, no modifications have been made to information contained in the Initial 8-K, and the Company has not
updated any information contained therein to reflect events that have occurred since the date of the Initial 8-K. Accordingly, this Amendment should be read
in conjunction with the Initial 8-K.



Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
 

(a) Financial statements of business acquired.

The audited consolidated financial statements of VTBH for the year ended December 31, 2013 required to be filed pursuant to Item 9.01(a) of
Form 8-K are filed as Exhibit 99.3 to this Current Report on Form 8-K/A and are incorporated herein by reference. The audited consolidated financial
statements of VTBH for the years ended December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, and the unaudited interim financial statements of VTBH for the nine
month periods ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012, required to be filed pursuant to Item 9.01(a) of Form 8-K, were included in the Proxy
Statement filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013, and are incorporated into this Current Report by reference.

(b) Pro forma financial information.

The unaudited pro forma financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013 required to be filed pursuant to Item 9.01(b) of
Form 8-K is filed as Exhibit 99.4 to this Current Report on Form 8-K/A and are incorporated herein by reference. The unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated financial information is a presentation of historical results with accounting adjustments necessary to reflect the estimated pro forma effect of the
Merger and is presented for informational purposes only. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information does not reflect the effects of
any anticipated changes to be made to the operations of the combined companies in connection with the Merger, including synergies and cost savings and
does not include one time charges expected to result from the Merger. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information should not be
construed to be indicative of future results of operations or financial position.
 

(d) Exhibits.
 
Exhibit

No.  Description

  2.1*†
 

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 5, 2013, among the Company, Merger Sub and VTBH (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1
to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K originally filed with the SEC on August 5, 2013).

10.1†

 

Credit Agreement, dated August 22, 2012, among Voyetra Turtle Beach, Inc., as the Borrower, VTBH, the various financial institutions and
other persons party thereto from time to time as Lenders, PNC Bank, National Association, as administrative and collateral agent for the
Lenders, Swingline Lender and as the Issuer, PNC Capital Markets LLC, as a Joint Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Manufacturers and
Traders Trust Company, Silicon Valley Bank, and Citibank, N.A., each as a Lender, Joint Lead Arranger and Co-Syndication Agent, and
National Penn Bank and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp., each as a Lender and Co-Documentation Agent.

10.2†

 

Waiver and First Amendment, dated July 17, 2013, to the Credit Agreement, dated August 22, 2012, by and among Voyetra Turtle Beach, Inc.,
as the Borrower, VTBH, the various financial institutions and other Persons from time to time party thereto as Lenders, and PNC Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the Lenders.

10.3†

 

Second Amendment, dated August 5, 2013, to the Credit Agreement, dated August 22, 2012 (as amended), by and among Voyetra Turtle
Beach, Inc., as the Borrower, VTBH, the various financial institutions and other Persons from time to time party thereto as Lenders, and PNC
Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the Lenders.

10.4†

 

Third Amendment, dated January 15, 2014, to the Credit Agreement, dated August 22, 2012 (as amended), by and among Voyetra Turtle
Beach, Inc., as the Borrower, VTBH, the various financial institutions and other Persons from time to time party thereto as Lenders, and PNC
Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the Lenders.

10.5†  Joinder Agreement, dated as of January 15, 2014, between the Company and PNC Bank, National Association as administrative agent.

10.6†
 

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of January 15, 2014, among the Company, HyperSound Health, Inc., PSC Licensing Corp. and PNC, as
administrative agent.



10.7†   Subordinated Promissory Note, dated August 30, 2013, among VTBH and Juergen Stark.

10.8†   Subordinated Promissory Note, dated August 30, 2013, among VTBH and SG VTB Holdings, LLC.

10.9†   Subordinated Promissory Note, dated August 30, 2013, among VTBH and Doornink Revocable Living Trust dated December 17, 1996.

10.10†   Subordinated Promissory Note, dated January 15, 2014, among VTBH and SG VTB Holdings, LLC.

10.11†
  

Parametric Sound Corporation 2013 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Annex E to the Company’s
Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A originally filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013).

10.12†
  

Parametric Sound Corporation Annual Incentive Bonus Plan (Incorporated by reference to Annex F to the Company’s Definitive Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A originally filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013).

10.13†   Form of Lock-up Agreement, among the Company, VTBH and certain officers and directors of VTBH.

23.1   Consent of BDO USA, LLP.

23.2   Consent of Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

99.1†   Press release of the Company, dated January 15, 2014.

99.2

  

Consolidated balance sheets as of September 28, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012 and 2011, consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive (loss) income for the nine months ended September 28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 (unaudited) and for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, consolidated statements of convertible preferred stock and of stockholders’ (deficit) equity for the cumulative
period December 31, 2009 through September 28, 2013 (unaudited), consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months ended September
28, 2013 and September 29, 2012 (unaudited) and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and related notes thereto (Incorporated by
reference to Annex D to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A originally filed with the SEC on December 3, 2013).

99.3
  

Audited consolidated financial statements of VTB Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011.

99.4   Unaudited pro forma combined condensed financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013.

99.5   Press Release of the Company, dated March 27, 2014.
 
* All exhibits and schedules to the Agreement and Plan of Merger have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Company will

furnish the omitted exhibits and schedules to the SEC upon request by the SEC.
† Incorporated by reference to the exhibit numbered as indicated above to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 16, 2014.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 
Dated: March 28, 2014   PARAMETRIC SOUND CORPORATION

  By: /s/ John T. Hanson
   Name: John T. Hanson
   Title: Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (File No. 333-188389 and File No. 333-173017), the
Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File No. 333-171838, File No. 333-181653, File No. 333-188390, and File No. 333-193982), and the proxy statement
on Schedule 14A filed on December 3, 2013 (the “proxy statement”) of Parametric Sound Corporation of our report dated November 4, 2013, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of VTB Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2011, which is included in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A of
Parametric Sound Corporation.

/s/BDO USA, LLP
New York, New York

March 28, 2014



Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-188389 and File No. 333-173017) and Registration
Statements on Form S-8 (File No. 333-171838, File No. 333-181653, File No. 333-188390, and File No. 333-193982) of Parametric Sound Corporation of
our report dated November 4, 2013, relating to our audit of the consolidated financial statements of VTB Holdings, Inc. as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2012, included in the Parametric Sound Corporation Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on December 3, 2013, and our report dated March
28, 2014 relating to the consolidated financial statements of VTB Holdings, Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, which is
contained in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A of Parametric Sound Corporation.

/s/ FREED MAXICK CPAs, P.C.

Buffalo, New York
March 28, 2014



Exhibit 99.3

VTB Holdings, Inc.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
 
   Page 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012    F-1  

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the year ended December 31, 2011    F-2  

Consolidated Financial Statements:   

Consolidated Balance Sheets    F-3  

Consolidated Statements of Operations    F-4  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income    F-5  

Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock and of Stockholders’ Deficit    F-6  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows    F-7  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements    F-8  



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
VTB Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VTB Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income, convertible preferred stock and of stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of VTB Holdings, Inc. as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ FREED MAXICK CPAs, P.C.
Buffalo, New York
March 28, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
VTB Holdings, Inc.
Valhalla, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of VTB Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and the related consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income, convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of VTB Holdings, Inc. at
December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
New York, New York
November 4, 2013
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013   

As of
December 31,

2012  
ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 6,509   $ 5,219  
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $8,980 as of December 31, 2013 and $14,404 December 31, 2012    48,542    65,586  
Inventories, net    49,643    40,706  
Deferred tax assets    2,214    4,452  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    3,561    1,932  
Prepaid income taxes    2,925    1,198  

    
 

   
 

Total Current Assets    113,394    119,093  
Property and equipment, net    7,369    5,732  
Deferred financing costs, net    1,575    2,128  
Deferred tax assets, long-term portion    827    2,266  
Intangible assets, net    3,972    4,955  
Other assets    170    21  

    
 

   
 

TOTAL ASSETS   $ 127,307   $ 134,195  
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    
CURRENT LIABILITIES:    

Revolving line of credit   $ 39,736   $ 33,000  
Term loan, current portion    14,500    15,000  
Accounts payable    44,136    24,190  
Accrued liabilities    8,615    12,496  
Due to shareholders, current portion    3,125    3,125  
Income taxes payable    —      8,106  
Other current liabilities    1,097    470  

    
 

   
 

Total Current Liabilities    111,209    96,387  
Term loan, long-term portion    —      26,250  
Due to shareholders, long-term portion    —      3,125  
Series B redeemable preferred stock    13,713    12,703  
Income tax payable, long-term portion    1,986    1,933  
Deferred tax liabilities    850    1,174  
Subordinated note    10,342    —    

    
 

   
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES    138,100    141,572  
    

 
   

 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 8 and 9)    
Series A convertible stock, $0.01 par value - 50,000,000 shares authorized; 48,689,555 shares issued and outstanding

as of December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012    24,345    24,345  
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    

Common stock, $0.01 par value - 100,000,000 shares authorized; 35,282,286 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012    353    353  

Additional paid-in capital    (54,371)   (56,934) 
Retained earnings    18,775    24,938  
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    105    (79) 

    
 

   
 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    (35,138)   (31,722) 
    

 
   

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT   $ 127,307   $ 134,195  
    

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2013   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011  

Net Revenue   $ 178,470   $ 207,136   $ 166,121  
Cost of Revenue    128,141    132,795    96,536  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Gross Profit    50,329    74,341    69,585  

Operating expenses:     
Selling and marketing    31,645    22,837    13,009  
Product development    4,873    2,099    1,839  
General and administrative    8,349    6,153    7,094  
Business transaction    3,864    342    9,375  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    48,731    31,431    31,317  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Operating income    1,598    42,910    38,268  

Other expense (income), net:     
Interest expense    6,626    4,738    2,932  
Other expense, net    45    7    —    
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition    —      (2,303)   —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total other expense, net    6,671    2,442    2,932  
    

 
   

 
   

 

(Loss) income before provision for income taxes    (5,073)   40,468    35,336  
Provision for income taxes    1,090    14,008    13,782  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net (loss) income   $ (6,163)  $ 26,460   $ 21,554  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders:     
Basic   $ (6,163)  $ 1,611   $ 8,855  

    

 

   

 

   

 

Diluted   $ (6,163)  $ 1,611   $ 8,855  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Net (loss) income per share attributable to common stockholders:     
Basic   $ (0.17)  $ 0.05   $ 0.26  

    

 

   

 

   

 

Diluted   $ (0.17)  $ 0.04   $ 0.25  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted-average shares used to computing net (loss) income per share attributable to common
stockholders:     

Basic    35,282    35,282    33,952  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Diluted    35,282    36,265    34,924  
    

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

(In thousands)
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2013   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011  

Net (loss) income   $ (6,163)  $ 26,460   $ 21,554  

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:     
Foreign currency cumulative translation adjustment    184    (79)   —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax    184    (79)   —    
    

 
   

 
   

 

Comprehensive (loss) income   $ (5,979)  $ 26,381   $ 21,554  
    

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(In thousands, except share data)
 

   
Series A Convertible

Preferred Stock    Common Stock    Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 Retained
Earnings  

 
Accum
Other
Comp

Income (Loss) 
 Total

Stockholders’
Deficit     Shares    Amount    Shares    Amount      

Balance - December 31, 2010    48,689,555    $24,345     32,459,434    $ 325    $(60,912)  $ 15,947   $ —     $ (44,640) 

Net income    —       —       —       —       —      21,554    —      21,554  
Restricted stock grant    —       —       2,822,852     28     (28)   —      —      —    
Purchase price adjustment to prior

shareholders    —       —       —       —       (728)   —      —      (728) 
Stock-based compensation    —       —       —       —       3,749    —      —      3,749  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance - December 31, 2011    48,689,555     24,345     35,282,286     353     (57,919)   37,501    —      (20,065) 

Net income    —       —       —       —       —      26,460    —      26,460  
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax    —       —       —       —       —      —      (79)   (79) 
Stock-based compensation    —       —       —       —       985    —      —      985  
Cash dividends    —       —       —       —       —      (39,023)   —      (39,023) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance - December 31, 2012    48,689,555     24,345     35,282,286     353     (56,934)   24,938    (79)   (31,722) 

Net loss    —       —       —       —       —      (6,163)   —      (6,163) 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax    —       —       —       —       —      —      184    184  
Stock-based compensation    —       —       —       —       2,563    —      —      2,563  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance - December 31, 2013    48,689,555    $24,345     35,282,286    $ 353    $(54,371)  $ 18,775   $ 105   $ (35,138) 
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
 
   For the Years Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
Net (loss) income   $ (6,163)  $ 26,460   $ 21,554  
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment    4,422    1,858    700  
Amortization of intangible assets    923    748    —    
Amortization of debt financing costs    1,556    835    207  
Stock-based compensation    2,563    985    3,749  
Accrued interest on Series B redeemable preferred stock    1,010    (945)   1,011  
Paid in kind interest    342    —      —    
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition    —      (2,303)   —    
Deferred income taxes    3,353    (1,598)   (1,388) 
(Reversal of) provision for sales returns reserve    (1,482)   1,596    2,046  
(Reversal of) provision for doubtful accounts    (235)   358    (705) 
(Reversal of) provision for obsolete inventory    93    588    219  
Loss on disposal of property and equipment    108    47    —    
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     

Accounts receivable, net    18,761    (23,461)   (25,724) 
Inventories    (9,030)   (857)   (11,530) 
Accounts payable    19,946    4,123    14,442  
Accrued liabilities    (3,881)   1,081    (2,197) 
Due to shareholders    (3,125)   (3,125)   —    
Prepaid expenses and other assets    (1,778)   (1,203)   (1,543) 
Prepaid and accrued income taxes    (9,780)   (534)   1,558  
Other liabilities    687    347    2  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    18,290    5,000    2,401  
    

 
   

 
   

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
Purchase of property and equipment, net of disposals    (6,167)   (5,945)   (1,634) 
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired    —      (5,335)   —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (6,167)   (11,280)   (1,634) 
    

 
   

 
   

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Borrowings on revolving line of credit    51,250    48,000    12,000  
Repayment of revolving line of credit    (44,514)   (27,000)   —    
Borrowings on term loan    —      45,000    —    
Repayment of term loan    (26,750)   (28,950)   (2,800) 
Debt financing costs    (1,003)   (2,391)   (143) 
Proceeds from subordinated notes    10,000    —      —    
Cash dividends on Series A preferred, common stock    —      (39,023)   —    
Payments to shareholders    —      —      (1,872) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (11,017)   (4,364)   7,185  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    184    (79)   —    
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    1,290    (10,723)   7,952  
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year    5,219    15,942    7,990  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year   $ 6,509   $ 5,219   $ 15,942  
    

 

   

 

   

 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION     
Cash paid for interest   $ 3,694   $ 4,716   $ 1,682  

    

 

   

 

   

 

Cash paid for income taxes   $ 8,224   $ 16,749   $ 14,669  
    

 

   

 

   

 

SUPPLEMENTAL NON-CASH ACTIVITIES     
Settlement of accounts receivable related to acquisition   $ —     $ 8,920   $ —    

    

 

   

 

   

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
 
1. Organization and Description of Business

Organization

VTB Holdings, Inc. (“VTBH” or the “Company”) was incorporated in the State of Delaware in 2010 and is headquartered in Valhalla, New York. In January
2011, a reorganization of the business was effected whereby VTBH became the parent holding company of the historical business of Voyetra Turtle Beach
Inc. (“VTB”). Subsequent to the reorganization, VTB is a wholly-owned subsidiary of VTBH.

VTB was incorporated in the State of Delaware in 1975 and is headquartered in Valhalla, New York with warehouse distribution centers in New York, New
Jersey, Texas and California. VTB is a designer and marketer of premium audio peripherals for video game consoles, personal computers and mobile devices
under the brand Turtle Beach (TurtleBeach.com), including officially-licensed headsets for the next-generation Xbox® One and PlayStation® 4 consoles.
Sales of gaming headsets represented the majority of VTB’s gross sales, with the remaining gross sales derived from accessories, including replacement parts
for gaming headsets and audio cables. The Company currently derives the majority of revenue from headsets for the Xbox and PlayStation consoles. Turtle
Beach is a leading brand in video game audio and the official audio provider for Major League Gaming, the world’s largest eSports league, and Twitch, the
world’s leading video platform and community for gamers.

The majority of VTB’s products are distributed domestically to specialty retailers of consumer electronics and wholesalers, and internationally to wholesalers.
Products are also sold directly to consumers through VTB’s website. International sales are generally shipped directly from VTB’s manufacturing partners in
China to the international wholesalers.

In October 2012, VTB acquired Lygo International Limited (“Lygo”), which is a corporation established in the United Kingdom. See Note 5 – Acquisition of
Lygo. As a result of the acquisition, Lygo become a wholly-owned subsidiary of VTB and changed its name to Turtle Beach Europe (“TB Europe”). TB
Europe’s results are included prospectively in the accompanying consolidated financial statements after the acquisition date.

Recapitalization

In October 2010, VTB effected a transaction that allowed Stripes Group, a growth equity firm, to acquire an equity ownership interest in VTB. The
transaction was effected by having SG VTB Merger Sub, an inactive nonpublic shell incorporated in Delaware, merge with and into VTB, the surviving
corporation. As a result of this merger, VTB cancelled 153,993,675 shares of its $0.01 par value common stock that it had outstanding. VTB then issued
32,459,434 shares of its $0.01 par value common stock to certain former shareholders, 48,689,555 shares of its $0.01 par value Series A convertible preferred
stock to Stripes Group and 1,000,000 shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock to one of the former shareholders. Concurrent with this transaction, VTB
also entered into a long-term debt financing arrangement for $28.0 million.

As a result of this transaction, Stripes Group acquired an ownership interest in VTB for $66.2 million, including a final purchase price adjustment. The
transaction value of $66.2 million was allocated as follows: $48.9 million for acquiring the equity interests of the former shareholders, $12.4 million for
incurring liabilities associated with the issuance of the Series B redeemable preferred stock; the purchase price adjustment payable to certain former
shareholders of $1.2 million; and the remaining balance of $3.7 million was used for transaction-related expenses. During 2011, an additional payment of
$0.7 million was made to the former shareholders towards a purchase price adjustment, which was recorded as a distribution to the former shareholders in
additional paid-in capital in the accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders’ deficit. Additionally, performance bonuses of $9.4 million were paid
to certain members of management for the year ended December 31, 2011, which is included as a business transaction expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.
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The transaction was treated as a recapitalization for accounting purposes rather than a business combination since SG VTB Merger Sub is not substantive and
does not meet the definition of a business. SG VTB Merger was formed to facilitate the transaction, did not have any prior operations and the debt financing
was incurred by VTB. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of VTB subsequent to the recapitalization have been prepared based upon the
historical cost and operations of VTB.

Reorganization

In January 2011, VTB effected a reorganization whereby VTBH became the holding company of VTB. This resulted in VTB becoming a wholly-owned
subsidiary of VTBH.

Prior to the reorganization, VTB executed a reverse stock split of its common stock by issuing 1 share for each 6,890.7 shares of common stock held by its
former shareholders. VTBH also executed a stock split of its Series A convertible preferred stock and common stock by issuing 47.1 shares for each 1 share
of Series A convertible preferred stock and common stock held by its former shareholders. The stock split has been recorded retroactively in the consolidated
financial statements for all periods presented.

In the reorganization, all of VTB’s equity interests in the form of shares of common stock and preferred stock were contributed and transferred to VTBH.
VTBH then issued its $0.01 par value common stock, Series A $0.01 par value convertible preferred stock and Series B redeemable preferred stock, as
applicable, to VTB’s existing shareholders. There were no changes in the Company’s equity structure as a result of the reorganization.

The reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization because VTBH did not have any prior operations. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of VTBH subsequent to the reorganization have been prepared based upon the historical cost and operations of VTB.

Merger with Parametric Sound

As described more fully in Note 18 - Subsequent Events, on January 15, 2014 VTBH and a publicly traded corporation, Parametric Sound Corporation
(“Parametric”), an innovator in directed audio solutions, completed a merger in accordance with the terms of an agreement signed in August 2013. As a result
of the Merger, VTBH, the surviving entity in the Merger, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parametric. Shares of the Company’s common stock are
traded on the NASDAQ under the symbol (PAMT), and as a Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) registrant will be required to file annual and
periodic reports with SEC commencing with the quarter ended March 31, 2014.

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).
Subsequent to the reorganization in 2011, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of VTBH and its wholly-owned
subsidiary. Prior to the reorganization in 2011, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of VTB. All intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 balances to conform with 2013 presentation.

The Company historically records its results on a four-four-five week basis such that its fiscal quarters end on the last Saturday of each calendar quarter. For
the fourth quarter of each year, the Company uses December 31 as both its fiscal and calendar quarter ending date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Company to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and
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accompanying notes. Those management estimates include, but are not limited to revenue recognition and sales return reserves; determination of the fair
value of net assets acquired in a business combination; valuation of inventories; useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets; determination of
fair value of stock-based awards; income taxes and various other contingencies. The Company evaluates estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using
historical experience and other factors and adjusts those estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ from these estimates, and those differences could be material to the consolidated financial
statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with various domestic and foreign financial institutions of high credit quality. Periodic
evaluations of the relative credit standing of all of the institutions are performed. From time to time, cash balances with domestic financial institutions may
exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits.

Accounts receivable are unsecured and represent amounts due based on contractual obligations of customers. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable are mitigated due to the Company’s large number of customers. Credit risk is also mitigated by performing ongoing credit evaluations of
customers to assess the probability of accounts receivable collection based on a number of factors, including past transaction experience with the customer,
evaluation of their credit history, limiting the credit extended, and review of the invoicing terms of the contract. In addition the Company has credit insurance
in place through a third party insurer against defaults by certain domestic and international customers, subject to policy limits. The Company generally does
not require customers to provide collateral to support accounts receivable. The Company has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts for those
receivables that were determined not to be collectible.

Purchase Concentrations

The Company relies on foreign third parties to manufacture its products. For year ended December 31, 2013, two suppliers accounted for 59% of the
Company’s purchases and 70% of the accounts payable outstanding. For the year ended December 31, 2012, two suppliers accounted for 54% of the
Company’s purchases and 90% of the accounts payable outstanding. For the year ended December 31, 2011, two suppliers accounted for 67% of the
Company’s purchases and 92% of the accounts payable outstanding. Quality or performance failures of the Company’s products or changes in the
manufacturers’ or vendors’ financial or business condition could disrupt the Company’s ability to supply quality products to customers, and thereby have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business and consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, derivative instruments, revolving line of credit and long-
term debt. Cash equivalents are stated at amortized cost, which approximated fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet dates, due to the short period of
time to maturity. Accounts receivable and accounts payable are stated at their carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short time to the
expected receipt or payment. The revolving line of credit and long-term debt are stated at the carrying value as the stated interest rate approximates market
rates currently available to the Company. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has not elected the fair value option for any financial assets and
liabilities for which such an election would have been permitted.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated balance sheets are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair values. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or an exit price that would be
paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the
measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements as follows:

Level I – Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level II – Inputs are observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full
term of the related assets or liabilities; and

Level III – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market data for the related assets or liabilities. The categorization of a financial instrument
within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Financial instruments consist of Level I
and Level II assets and liabilities. Level I assets include highly liquid money market funds that are included in cash and cash equivalents. Level II liabilities
include derivative instruments. The Company does not have any Level III assets or liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash on hand and money market accounts. Interest is accrued as earned.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at their invoiced amount, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts and reserve for sales returns, and do not bear interest.
Accounts receivable from wholesale transactions are recorded at their outstanding unpaid principal balances. Accounts receivable from e-commerce
transactions consist of amounts from credit cards billed for which payment has not been received. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts to reserve for potentially uncollectible accounts, which is recorded based upon a detailed review of all outstanding invoices, including the number of
days that receivables are outstanding, historical and expected loss patterns and an evaluation of the potential risk associated with delinquent accounts.

Invoice Factoring

In the ordinary course of business, TB Europe, entered into and utilizes accounts receivable factoring arrangements with a third-party financial institution in
order to accelerate its cash collections from product sales. These arrangements involve the ownership transfer of eligible trade accounts receivable up to a
maximum of £5.0 million GBP at any time, without recourse, to a third party financial institution in exchange for cash.

The Company accounts for these transactions in accordance with ASC 860, “Transfers and Servicing” (“ASC 860”). ASC 860 allows for the ownership
transfer of accounts receivable to qualify for sale treatment when the appropriate criteria is met, which permits the Company to present the balances sold
under the program to be excluded from accounts receivable, net on the consolidated balance sheet. Receivables are considered sold when they are isolated
from the Company, the transferee has the right to pledge or exchange the receivables, and the Company has surrendered control over the transferred
receivables.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company sold trade accounts receivable to the third-party financial institution, of which approximately $5.7 million USD has
been received and netted against accounts receivable on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The Company also pays a factoring fee associated with
the sale of accounts receivable. The fees incurred are included in general and administrative expenses on the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations and are insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.

Concentrations of Revenue and Accounts Receivable

Significant customers are those which represent 10% or more of the revenues for each period presented or gross accounts receivable balance at each balance
sheet date. For each significant customer, revenue as a percentage of total revenues and accounts receivable as a percentage of gross accounts receivable are
as follows:
 

   Percentage of Revenues  

Customers   

Year Ended
December 31,

2013   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011  
Customer A    16%   18%   16% 
Customer B    15%   16%   24% 
Customer C    14%   12%   12% 
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Percentage of Accounts

Receivable  

Customers  

Year Ended
December 31,

2013   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012  

Customer A   24%   28% 
Customer B   20%   27% 

Derivative Instruments

The Company uses derivatives to partially offset its business exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. The Company may enter into foreign currency
forward and option contracts to offset some of the foreign exchange risk on expected future cash flows on certain operating expenses. These instruments are
not entered into for speculative purposes and the Company does not seek to qualify for hedge accounting. All derivative instruments are recorded at fair value
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The notional amounts of the Company’s outstanding derivative instruments associated with outstanding or
unsettled derivative instruments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were $8.0 million and $8.8 million, respectively and the fair value of the
derivative liabilities was $0.4 million and $0.2 million, respectively. Derivative liabilities include foreign currency forward and option contracts which are
measured using observable quoted prices for similar instruments. There were no derivative instruments for the year ended December 31, 2011. The gain/loss
recognized in other expense, net of foreign currency forward and option contracts instruments was not significant during the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012. Counterparties to these instruments are major banking institutions with credit ratings of investment grade or better and no collateral is required.
Management believes the risk of incurring any losses on these derivative instruments related to credit risk is remote.

Inventories, net

Inventories consist primarily of finished goods and related component parts, and are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual cost on a
first-in, first-out basis) or market value (estimated net realizable value). The Company maintains an inventory allowance for returned goods, slow-moving and
unused inventories based on the historical trend and estimates. Inventory write-downs, once established, are not reversed as they establish a new cost basis for
the inventory. Inventory write-downs are included as a component of cost of revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment including leasehold improvements, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from two to five years. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are expensed
as incurred.

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the respective assets or the property
lease terms, which range up to five years. Upon the retirement or disposition of property and equipment, the related costs and accumulated depreciation is
removed and any related gain or loss is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations.

Intangible Assets, net

Intangible assets consist of identifiable intangible assets, including customer relationships and non-compete agreements, resulting from the Company’s
acquisition of Lygo in October 2012. Intangible assets are recorded at their initial fair value, net of accumulated amortization. The Company amortizes
intangible assets that are subject to amortization over their estimated useful life based on economic benefit, which range from two to thirteen years.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets subject to depreciation and amortization are periodically
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability
of these assets is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of each asset to the future undiscounted cash flows the asset is expected to generate. If the
asset is considered to be impaired, the amount of any impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the impaired
asset. No impairment of long-lived assets was identified for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Revenue Recognition and Sales Return Reserves

Net revenue consists primarily of revenue from the sale of gaming headsets and accessories to wholesalers, retailers and to a lesser extent, on-line customers.
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and
collection is reasonably assured. Product is considered delivered to the customer once it has been shipped and title and risk of loss have been transferred. Net
revenue for on-line purchases is recognized when products are shipped from the Company’s distribution facilities.

Provisions for sales discounts, product returns and price adjustments are recorded as a reduction of revenue. These revenue reductions are established by the
Company based upon management’s best estimates at the time of sale following the historical trend, adjusted to reflect known changes in the factors that
impact such reserves and allowances, and the terms of agreements with customers.

Revenue is recognized net of sales taxes collected from customers and subsequently remitted to governmental authorities.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues primarily consists of expenses paid to manufacturing partners for the manufacture of the Company’s products. Cost of revenues also
includes product royalties, warranty expense, inbound freight and customs duties, freight out to customers, personnel costs and material handling and facility
costs.

Shipping and Handling

Freight charges billed to customers are included in net revenue and the related freight costs are included in cost of revenues in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Product Warranty Obligations

The Company provides for product warranties in accordance with the contract terms given to various customers by accruing estimated warranty costs at the
time of revenue recognition. Warranties are generally fulfilled by replacing defective products with new products.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed to selling and marketing expenses as incurred in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations totaling $7.7
million, $8.2 million and $4.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

The Company also incurs co-operative advertising costs that represent reimbursements to customers for shared marketing expenses for sale of its products.
These reimbursements are recorded as reductions of net revenue based on a percentage of sales for all period presented. Co-operative advertising
reimbursements were $4.3 million, $3.8 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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Product Development

Development costs incurred in the research and development of new products and enhancements to existing products are charged to expense as incurred.
Development costs include personnel costs and third-party development and programming costs, localization costs incurred to translate software for
international markets and in-process research and development.

Software Development Costs

Software development costs not qualifying for capitalization are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizes software development costs when the
product is available for general release to customers. Capitalized costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis, as the greater of the ratio of current gross
revenues for a product to the total of current and future gross revenues for the product or the straight-line amortization over the estimated useful life of the
product (generally three years). Unamortized capitalized software development costs determined to be in excess of the net realizable value of the product is
expensed immediately. The Company did not incur significant capitalized software development costs for any of the periods presented. The Company
capitalizes costs incurred during the application development stage relating to the development of its websites and computer software developed or purchased
for internal use and has been insignificant to date. Costs related to preliminary project activities and post-implementation activities are expensed as incurred.
Once placed into service, the Company anticipates amortizing these costs over a period of three years. Total costs incurred to date during the application
development stage have been insignificant.

Business Transaction Costs

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company incurred business transaction costs, consisting of legal and professional expenses associated with the
merger with Parametric in the amount of $3.8 million. For the year ended December 31, 2012, business transaction costs of $0.3 million consisted of
acquisition-related costs related to the Company’s TB Europe acquisition. For the year ended December 31, 2011, business transaction costs consisted of
performance bonuses related to the recapitalization.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs related to stock options and restricted stock grants are calculated based on the fair value of the stock-based awards on the date of grant,
net of estimated forfeitures. The grant date fair value of awards is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the related stock-based
compensation is recognized on a straight-line basis, over the period in which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, which is
generally four years.

For stock-based awards issued to non-employees, including consultants, compensation expense is based on the fair value of the awards calculated using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model over the service performance period. The fair value of options granted to non-employees for each reporting period is re-
measured over the vesting period and recognized as an expense over the period the services are received.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach to record deferred taxes. Deferred income tax assets represent temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities that will result in deductible amounts in future
years. The measurement of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on provisions of enacted tax laws; the effects of changes in tax laws are not
anticipated. Based on estimates of expected financial performance, the carrying value of the Company’s deferred tax assets assumes that it is more likely than
not that the Company will be able to generate sufficient future taxable income in the respective tax jurisdictions. Accordingly, the Company did not record a
valuation allowance in any periods presented. Judgment’s regarding future profitability may change due to future market conditions, changes in U.S. or
international tax laws and other factors. The Company will assess the realization of deferred income tax assets on an ongoing basis. The Company accounts
for uncertain tax positions by reporting a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. Interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in the income tax provision in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.
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Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company’s TB Europe subsidiary is the local currency. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, therefore, are translated into
U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at each consolidated balance sheet date. Revenues and expense accounts are translated at average monthly exchange
rates during the period. Translation adjustments are accumulated as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within
stockholders’ deficit. Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments constitute the sole component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Foreign currency transaction gains and losses resulting from or expected to result from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency are recognized in other expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. There were no foreign currency transaction gains
and losses for the periods prior to the acquisition of TB Europe. Foreign currency transaction losses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were
insignificant.

Segment Information

Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available and is evaluated regularly by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The CODM is the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company operates as one operating segment. The CODM manages the Company’s operations on a consolidated basis for purposes of allocating
resources. The CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis, accompanied by information about revenue by geographic region for
purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance.

Net (Loss) Income per Share of Common Stock

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock is presented in conformity with the two-class method required for participating securities.
Holders of Series A convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive noncumulative dividends when and if declared by the board of directors and are payable
prior and in preference to any dividends on shares of the Company’s common stock. In the event a dividend is paid on common stock, the convertible
preferred stockholders are entitled to a share of that dividend in proportion to the holders of common shares on an as-if converted basis.

The Series A convertible preferred stock is considered a participating security. Holders of participating securities do not have a contractual obligation to share
in the Company’s losses. In accordance with the two-class method, earnings allocated to these participating securities and the related number of outstanding
shares of the participating securities, which include contractual participation rights in undistributed earnings, have been excluded from the computation of
basic and diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock.

Under the two-class method, net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders is determined by allocating undistributed earnings, calculated as net (loss)
income less current period Series A convertible preferred stock non-cumulative dividends, among the common stock and participating securities. In
computing diluted net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders, undistributed earnings are re-allocated to reflect the potential impact of dilutive
securities. Basic net (loss) income per share of common share is computed by dividing the net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock is computed by dividing the
net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, including potential dilutive common shares
assuming the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options using the treasury stock method. For purposes of this calculation, participating securities and stock
options to purchase common stock are considered to be common stock equivalents and are excluded from the calculation of diluted net (loss) income per
share of common stock if their effect is antidilutive.
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Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standards update requiring new disclosures about reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) to net (loss) income. These disclosures may be presented on the face of the statements or in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance did not have a significant impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In February 2013, the FASB issued an update to the authoritative guidance related to the release of cumulative translation adjustments into net income (loss)
when a parent either sells a part or all of its investment in a foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a foreign entity. This update
will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2013, the FASB issued an update to the authoritative guidance related to the presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit in the financial statements.
The update will require entities to present an unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss or other tax credit
carryforwards when settlement in this manner is available under the tax laws. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013. The
adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

 
3. Fair Value Measurement

The following table sets forth the fair value of financial assets and liabilities by level within the fair value hierarchy:
 

   As of December 31, 2013  
   Level I   Level 1I  Level III   Total  
   (In thousands)  
Financial Assets and Liabilities:   

Cash and cash equivalents – money market funds   $ 19    $ —     $ —      $ 19  
    

 
    

 
   

 
    

 

Total financial assets   $ 19    $ —     $ —      $ 19  
    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

Other current liabilities – derivative liabilities   $ —      $ (392)  $ —      $(392) 
    

 
    

 
   

 
    

 

Total financial liabilities   $ —      $ (392)  $ —      $(392) 
    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

 
   As of December 31, 2012  
   Level 1   Level 1I  Level III   Total  
   (In thousands)  
Financial Assets and Liabilities:   

Cash and cash equivalents – money market funds   $ 50    $ —     $ —      $ 50  
    

 
    

 
   

 
    

 

Total financial assets   $ 50    $ —     $ —      $ 50  
    

 

    

 

   

 

    

 

Other current liabilities – derivative liabilities   $ —      $ (194)  $ —      $(194) 
    

 
    

 
   

 
    

 

Total financial liabilities   $ —      $ (194)  $ —      $(194) 
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4. Consolidated Balance Sheet Components

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013    

As of
December 31,

2012  
   (In thousands)  
Cash   $ 6,490    $ 5,169  
Money market account    19     50  

    
 

    
 

Total cash and cash equivalents   $ 6,509    $ 5,219  
    

 

    

 

Inventories, net

Inventories, net consist of the following:
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013    

As of
December 31,

2012  
   (In thousands)  
Raw materials   $ 5,499    $ 2,809  
Finished goods    44,144     37,897  

    
 

    
 

Total inventories, net   $ 49,643    $ 40,706  
    

 

    

 

Included in total inventories is a reserve of $0.3 million and $0.1 million for slow moving and obsolete inventory as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Sales Return Reserves

The sales return reserves consist of the following activity:
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013   

As of
December 31,

2012  
   (In thousands)  
Sales return reserves, beginning balance   $ 7,748   $ 6,151  

Reserve accrual    20,146    19,659  
Recoveries and deductions, net    (21,628)   (18,062) 

    
 

   
 

Sales return reserves, ending balance   $ 6,266   $ 7,748  
    

 

   

 

Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consists of the following:
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013   

As of
December 31,

2012  
   (In thousands)  
Machinery and equipment   $ 249   $ 136  
Software and software development    581    353  
Furniture and fixtures    144    131  
Tooling    1,756    1,101  
Leasehold improvements    59    67  
Demonstrations units and convention booth    10,014    5,948  

    
 

   
 

Total property and equipment, gross    12,803    7,736  
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization    (5,434)   (2,004) 

    
 

   
 

Total property and equipment, net   $ 7,369   $ 5,732  
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Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment, for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $4.4 million, $1.9 million and
$0.7 million.

Prepaid Royalties

The Company’s ability to earn-out royalty advances and contractual obligations with respect to minimum guaranteed royalties is assessed by comparing the
remaining minimum guaranty to the estimated future sales forecasts and related cash flow projections to be derived from the related product.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company had $0.8 million and $0.2 million, respectively of prepaid royalties which are included in prepaid expenses
and other current assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Minimum royalty commitments as of December 31, 2013 are approximately
$2.3 million to be paid through December 31, 2015. Royalty expense recognized for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to
$2.6 million, $3.8 million and $3.3 million, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

Amortization of deferred financing costs is included in interest expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, was $1.6 million, $0.8 million and $0.2 million respectively. Included in interest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were the write-off of $0.4 million and $0.3 million, respectively, in deferred financing costs related to the partial extinguishment
of term notes. Deferred financing costs are expected to be expensed during 2014.
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Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013    

As of
December 31,

2012  
   (In thousands)  
Accrued expenses   $ 5,295    $ 9,723  
Accrued compensation expenses    2,089     2,189  
Other    1,231     584  

    
 

    
 

Total accrued liabilities   $ 8,615    $ 12,496  
    

 

    

 

Warranty Accruals

The warranty accruals are included in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets and consist of the following:
 

   As of December 31  
   2013   2012   2011  
   (In thousands)  
Warranty – beginning of period   $ 165   $ 109   $ —    

Warranty costs accrued    614    618    625  
Warranty claims    (640)   (562)   (516) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Warranty – end of period   $ 139   $ 165   $ 109  
    

 

   

 

   

 

 
5. Acquisition of Lygo

In October 2012, the Company’s subsidiary, VTB, acquired all of the common stock of Lygo in order to gain access to the distribution channels in Europe.
Lygo had historically been VTB’s sole distributor in Europe. As a result of the acquisition of Lygo, the Company expects to increase its market share by
expanding into new geographic areas overseas and new related products and leveraging distribution channels to reach new customers. Subsequent to the
acquisition the Lygo business formally changed its name to Turtle Beach Europe (“TB Europe”).

The Lygo acquisition was accounted using the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. Accordingly, the results of operations of
TB Europe are included prospectively from the date of acquisition.

The total fair value of consideration transferred amounted to $14.4 million, which includes $5.5 million of cash and the effective settlement of $8.9 million of
accounts receivable from Lygo, was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
 

   (in thousands) 
Cash   $ 133  
Accounts receivable    4,046  
Inventories    9,957  
Other current assets    321  
Property and equipment    12  
Intangible assets:   

Customer relationships    5,526  
Non-compete agreement    177  

Liabilities assumed:   
Accounts payables    (223) 
Other liabilities    (1,889) 
Derivative liability    (1,369) 

    
 

Total fair values of assets and liabilities    16,691  
Fair value of total consideration transferred    (14,388) 

    
 

Gain on bargain purchase   $ 2,303  
    

 

The excess of the net assets acquired over consideration transferred was assigned to a gain on bargain purchase in the amount of $2.3 million, which is
recorded as gain on bargain purchase from acquisition in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As a result of the bargain purchase, the
Company reassessed the recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and concluded that the valuation procedures and
resulting measures were appropriate. The bargain purchase gain was primarily driven from the exclusive nature of the arrangement between the two
companies prior to the acquisition whereby Lygo did not generate significant revenue from other vendors’ products. As a result, the value of the customer
relationships, the primary intangible asset acquired, was attributed to the difference between the cash flows associated with owning the asset versus building
the asset.

For tax purposes, the acquired intangible assets are not amortized. Accordingly, a deferred tax liability was recorded on the acquisition date for the difference
between the book and cost basis related to the acquired intangible assets. In connection with the acquisition, the Company issued 398,010 phantom units
under the 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan, which had an exercise price of $2.01 per share, to continuing employees of Lygo. The phantom units will
vest upon the occurrence of a performance condition and upon the satisfaction of service conditions. The Company’s phantom units are discussed further in
Note 12 – 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan. These equity awards were not included in the Company’s determination of the total purchase
consideration as these equity awards have post-acquisition performance and service conditions.

The Company incurred $0.3 million in acquisition-related transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2012, which is included as business transaction
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Unaudited Pro Forma Information

Supplemental information on a pro forma basis is presented below for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:
 

   Year ended December 31,  
   2012    2011  
   (In thousands)  
Pro forma revenues   $205,341    $172,271  
Pro forma net income    18,303     22,998  

The unaudited pro forma financial information combines the Company’s results of operations and TB Europe’s results of operations as if the acquisition of
Lygo had occurred as of January 1, 2011.

The pro forma results include the business combination accounting effects resulting from the acquisition such as the amortization charges from the acquired
intangible assets and the gain on bargain purchase. The pro forma information presented does not purport to present what the actual results would have been
had the acquisition actually occurred on January 1, 2011, nor is the information intended to project results for any future period.

From the acquisition date through December 31, 2012, the Company recognized revenues and net income for TB Europe’s of $13.1 million and $0.6 million
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. During the same period VTB recorded intercompany sales to TB Europe’s in the amount of
$5.9 million and elimination of intercompany profit of $1.4 million.
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6. Intangible Assets, net

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets is as follows:
 

   As of December 31, 2013  

   

Amortizations
Period at Date of

Acquisition    
Gross Carrying

Value    
Accumulated
Amortization   Net Book Value 

   (In thousands)  

Customer relationships    13.0 years    $ 5,526    $ 1,623    $ 3,903  
Non-compete agreements    2.0 years     177     108     69  

      
 

    
 

    
 

Total     $ 5,703    $ 1,731    $ 3,972  
      

 

    

 

    

 

 
   As of December 31, 2012  

   

Amortizations
Period at Date of

Acquisition    
Gross Carrying

Value    
Accumulated
Amortization   Net Book Value 

   (In thousands)  

Customer relationships    13.0 years    $ 5,526    $ 747    $ 4,779  
Non-compete agreements    2.0 years     177     1     176  

      
 

    
 

    
 

Total     $ 5,703    $ 748    $ 4,955  
      

 

    

 

    

 

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 amortization expense of approximately $0.9 million and $0.7 million, respectively on the
intangible assets was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements in selling and marketing expenses.

As of December 31, 2013, estimated annual amortization expense related to identifiable acquisition-related intangible assets in future periods is as follows:
 

Year ending December 31   
Estimated Amortization

Expense  
   (In thousands)  
2014   $ 782  
2015    619  
2016    519  
2017    436  
2018    366  
Thereafter    1,250  

    
 

Total   $ 3,972  
    

 

 
F-21



7. Long-Term Debt

The Company’s long-term debt obligations are as follows:
 

   

As of
December 31,

2013   

As of
December 31,

2012  
   (In thousands)  
Revolving lines of credit   $ 39,736   $ 33,000  
Term loans    14,500    41,250  
Subordinated notes    10,342    —    

    
 

   
 

Total outstanding debt    64,578    74,250  
Less: current portion of revolving line of credit    (39,736)   (33,000) 
Less: current portion of term loan    (14,500)   (15,000) 

    
 

   
 

Total noncurrent portion of long-term debt   $ 10,342   $ 26,250  
    

 

   

 

Total interest expense, inclusive of amortization of deferred financing costs, on long-term debt obligations was $5.6 million, $3.7 million and $1.9 million for
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Loan and Security Agreement

Term Loan

In October 2010, pursuant to the recapitalization discussed in Note 1 - Organization and Description of Business, the Company entered into a Loan and
Security Agreement, with various financial institutions. The Loan and Security Agreement, as amended, provided for term loans secured by a first priority
lien against substantially all of Turtle Beach’s assets. The term loans bear interest at the greater of (i) a minimum interest rate of 5.5% or (ii) a LIBOR
(London interbank offered rate) plus 4.0% per annum. Interest is due monthly. In August 2012, the Loan and Security Agreement was amended and restated
to increase the principal amount on the term loans to $45.0 million and amend the maturity date to August 22, 2015. The Company drew down the maximum
$45 million available under on the term loan.

The term loans bear interest at the Company’s option at (i) the Adjusted Base Rate plus the applicable margin ranging from 2.50% to 3.25% as determined by
the Company’s total leverage ratio, or (ii) LIBOR rate, plus the applicable margin ranging from 3.50% to 4.25%. The Applicable Base Rate is equal to the
highest of (a) the Prime Rate as determined by the syndication agent, (b) Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% and (c) the LIBOR rate plus 1.0%. Interest is due, at
the Company’s option, every 30, 60 or 90 days. The term loans had scheduled quarterly principal repayments of $3.8 million, due on the last day of each
quarter, commencing on December 29, 2012. In addition, the term loans shall be reduced, commencing in 2012, by an amount equal to 50% of the excess
cash flows, as defined in the Loan and Security Agreement, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and for each fiscal year thereafter; however, no such
payment was required for the 2012 fiscal year. Upon full repayment of the term loans, any excess cash flow will then be applied against the outstanding
balance of the revolving loan. The term loans can be repaid at any time without penalty.

In conjunction with the August 2012 amendment, the Company incurred $1.1 million in debt issuance costs that are being amortized to interest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations over the contractual life of the term loans using the effective interest method. As a result of the August
2012 amendment, the Company recognized $0.3 million through interest expense of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the decrease in principal
balance on the term loan to the existing lender that was treated as a partial debt extinguishment. The remaining rollover principal balance to the existing
lender was treated as a debt modification.

The term loans, as amended matured on January 15 and February 28, 2014 and were repaid with proceeds from a $7 million issuance of subordinated debt
and the Company’s existing cash balances.
 

F-22



As of December 31, 2012 unamortized debt issuance costs related to term loans was $0.9 million.

Revolving Line of Credit

In August 2011, the Loan and Security Agreement was amended and restated with various financial institutions to include a $15.0 million revolving line of
credit. The revolving line of credit initially required interest at the greater of (i) the minimum interest rate of 4.50% or (ii) LIBOR plus 3.0%. Interest is due
monthly. The Company was also required to pay a quarterly commitment fee of up to 0.25% per annum on the unused portion of the revolving line of credit.
The original maturity of the revolving line of credit was May 31, 2012.

In August 2012, the Loan and Security Agreement was amended and restated to increase the borrowing capacity on the revolving line of credit to
$55.0 million to fund the acquisition of TB Europe in October 2012 and to fund distributions to the Company’s shareholders. The maturity date on the
revolving line of credit was amended to August 22, 2015. The revolving line of credit is subject to limitations based on specific percentages of eligible
accounts receivables and inventory and bears interest at the Company’s option at (i) the Adjusted Base Rate plus the applicable margin ranging from 2.50% to
3.25% as determined by the Company’s total leverage ratio, or (ii) LIBOR rate plus the applicable margin ranging from 3.50% to 4.25%. The Applicable Base
Rate is equal to the highest of (1) the Prime Rate as determined by the syndication agent, (b) Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% and (c) the LIBOR rate plus 1%.

Interest is due, at the Company’s option, every 30, 60 or 90 days. The Company is also required to pay a quarterly commitment fee of up to 0.50% per annum
on the unused portion of the revolving line of credit. The revolving line of credit is subject to an annual provision that requires that there be no amounts
outstanding for a 30 day period during the first quarter of each fiscal year; however, it can otherwise be repaid at any time without penalty.

In 2012, the Company incurred $1.3 million in debt issuance costs related to the amendment, which are being amortized over the contractual life of the
revolving line of credit facility on a straight-line basis. As of December 31, 2012, the unamortized debt issuance costs related to the revolving line of credit
was $1.1 million.

Other Facilities

Under the terms of the Loan and Security Agreement (as amended and restated), the Company can also draw down on a swing loan commitment of up to
$5.0 million. Any borrowings on the swing loan mature in seven days of the borrowing date. In addition, the Company can arrange for certain letters of credit
with a maximum amount of $5.0 million. Any borrowings against these facilities reduce the amount available pursuant to the revolving line of credit. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company had not drawn any amounts on the swing loan. At December 31, 2012 the Company had drawn $0.2 million under the
letter of credit facility.

Covenants

Outstanding borrowings on the Loan and Security Agreement (as amended and restated) are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and
pledges of certain shares in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Loan and Security Agreement (as amended and restated) contains certain affirmative and
negative covenants to which the Company must comply. The Company is also required to comply with the following financial covenants as amended and
restated in January 2014:
 

 •  Minimum EBITDA as defined in the Credit Agreement
 

 •  Maximum total leverage ratio (defined as the ratio of total debt outstanding to EBITDA
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 •  Maximum amount of capital expenditures that can be incurred during a fiscal year.
 

 •  Minimum liquidity thresholds of cash and borrowing availability at the end of each monthly period

The Company was not in compliance with the fixed charge coverage ratio as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and the Company entered into two
amendments to the Loan and Security Agreement (collectively the “2013 Amendments”) that waived the default of the fixed charge coverage ratio for those
periods. In addition, the 2013 Amendments provided for (i) a minimum EBITDA financial covenant which required that EBITDA for the 12 month period
ended June 30, 2013 not be less than $37.0 million, (ii) modification of the total fixed charge coverage ratio for periods ending September 28, 2013 through
maturity, (iii) modification of the maximum total leverage ratio for the periods ending September 28, 2013 through maturity, and (iv) modification of the
annual clean-down requirements of the revolving line of credit and swing loan to provide for an increase in the eligible amount outstanding from $0 to
$16.5 million.

2013 Amendments

In addition, the 2013 Amendments amended the interest rate on the outstanding term loans to bear interest at the Company’s option at (i) the Adjusted Base
Rate plus the applicable margin of 3.25%, or (ii) LIBOR rate plus the applicable margin of 4.25%. At December 31, 2013, the interest rates on the term loans
were 5.75% and 6.50%. There were no amendments to the interest rate on the revolving line of credit facilities. As of December 31, 2013, the interest rates on
the revolving loan were 5.75% and 6.50%. The 2013 Amendments also required the Company to issue Subordinated Notes to reduce the outstanding
borrowings on the term loan. In August 2013, the Company issued $10.0 million of Subordinated Notes to certain affiliated investors, including the Stripes
Group and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the proceeds of which were applied against the outstanding balance of the term loan.

In conjunction with the 2013 Amendments, the Company incurred $0.4 million in debt issuance costs related to the term notes that are being amortized to
interest expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations over the contractual life of the term loans using the effective interest method.
As a result of the 2013 Amendments, the Company recognized $0.4 million through interest expense of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the
decrease in principal balance on the term loans to the existing lenders that were treated as a partial debt extinguishment. The remaining unamortized deferred
financing costs related to the rollover principal balances to the existing lenders were treated as a debt modification. As of December 31, 2013, the
unamortized debt issuance costs related to the term loans were $0.4 million.

In conjunction with 2013 Amendments, the Company incurred $0.6 million in debt issuance costs related to the revolving line of credit facilities, which are
being amortized over the contractual life of the revolving line of credit facilities on a straight-line basis. As of December 31, 2013, the unamortized debt
issuance costs related to the revolving line of credit were $1.2 million.

In conjunction with 2013 Amendments, other than as previously disclosed, there were no other significant changes to the swing loan and letter of credit
facility. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had not drawn any amounts on the swing loan. At December 31, 2013, the Company had drawn $0.2 million
under the letter of credit facility.

Subordinated Notes

The Subordinated Notes were entered into on August 30, 3013 and bear interest at a rate of (i) 10% per annum for the first year and (ii) 20% per annum for all
periods thereafter. Interest accrues quarterly by increasing the principal on the notes. Accrued interest on the notes was approximately $0.3 million as of
December 31, 2013. Principal and interest on the Subordinated Notes is due at maturity. The Subordinated Notes mature on the one year anniversary of the
later of (i) the term loan maturity or (ii) the revolving line of credit termination date.

As described in Note 18 - Subsequent Events, the Company entered into additional Amendments of these credit facilities on January 15, 2014, and on
March 13, 2014.
 

F-24



Scheduled principal payments on outstanding long-term debt borrowings as of December 31, 2013 is approximately $54.2 million in 2014 and $10.3 million
in 2015.

 
8. Commitments and Contingencies

Purchase Commitments

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 the Company has purchase commitments of $5.2 million and $8.4 million, respectively, to purchase
finished goods from third-party vendors. These purchase commitments result from the vendors’ contractual obligation to procure, assemble and manufacture
the Company’s products in advance of anticipated sales.

Lease Commitments

The Company leases office and warehouse spaces under operating leases that provide for future minimum rental lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases as of December 31, 2013, are as follows:
 

Year ending December 31   
Future Minimum Rental

Lease Payments  
2014    873  
2015    768  
2016    581  
2017    539  
2018    552  
Thereafter    463  

    
 

Total minimum lease payments   $ 3,776  
    

 

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $0.7 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis. Total deferred rent as of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.1
million, respectively, included in other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Litigation

The Company is involved in certain legal proceedings from time to time in the normal course of its operations. The Company believes that the eventual
outcome of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or its consolidated results of operations
or cash flows.

On August 5, 2013, VTBH and Parametric announced that they had entered into the Merger agreement pursuant to which VTBH would have an
approximately 80% ownership interest and Parametric shareholders would have an approximately 20% ownership interest in the combined company.
Following the announcement, several of Parametric’s shareholders filed class action lawsuits in California and Nevada seeking to enjoin the merger. The
plaintiffs in each case alleged that members of Parametric’s board of directors breached their fiduciary duties to the shareholders by agreeing to a proposed
merger that allegedly undervalues Parametric. VTBH was named as a defendant in these lawsuits under the theory that VTBH aided and abetted the
Parametric board of directors in allegedly violating their fiduciary duties. The plaintiffs in both cases sought a preliminary injunction seeking to enjoin closing
of the Merger, which by agreement was heard by the Nevada court with the California plaintiffs invited to participate. On December 26, 2013, the court in the
Nevada cases denied the plaintiffs’ motion for a preliminary injunction. Following the closing of the Merger, the Nevada plaintiffs filed a second amended
complaint, which makes essentially the same allegations and seeks monetary damages as well as an order rescinding the Merger. The California plaintiffs
dismissed their action without prejudice, and are now seeking to intervene in the Nevada action. VTBH believes that the plaintiffs’ claims against it are
without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself in the litigation. As of December 31, 2013, the Company is unable to estimate a possible loss or range of
possible loss in regards to this matter; therefore, no litigation reserve has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
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On November 20, 2013, Shana Vasek, a purported shareholder of Parametric, filed a class action lawsuit in the United States District Court for the District of
Nevada, under the caption Vasek v. Parametric Sound Corp., Case No.2:13-cv-02148-JAD-GWF, naming the same defendants, asserting substantially the
same allegations and seeking substantially the same relief as asserted and sought in the above-referenced consolidated action pending in Nevada state court.
In addition to asserting substantially the same claims for breach of fiduciary duty and aiding and abetting as asserted in the above-referenced consolidated
action pending in Nevada state court, the plaintiff in the federal court action asserts a claim for violations of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and SEC Rule 14a-9. VTBH has not been served with the complaint in the Nevada federal action. VTBH believes that the plaintiffs’
claims against it are without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself in litigation in the event it is served. As of December 31, 2013, the Company is
unable to estimate a possible loss or range of possible loss in regards to this matter; therefore, no litigation reserve has been recorded in the consolidated
financial statements.

 
9. Preferred Stock

Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

In September 2010, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of its Series B redeemable preferred stock with a fair value of $12.4 million. The Series B
redeemable preferred stock was recorded at fair value on the date of issuance. The Series B redeemable preferred stock is non-voting and does not contain any
conversion rights.

The Series B redeemable preferred stock must be redeemed on the earlier of September 28, 2030 or the occurrence of a liquidation event at its original issue
price of $12.425371 per share plus any accrued but unpaid dividends.

Dividends are cumulative and accrue at a rate of 8.0% per annum, compounded quarterly. Dividends are payable as and when declared by the board of
directors of the Company.

The Company has recorded the Series B redeemable preferred stock as a non-current liability due to its mandatory redemption provisions for all periods
presented. The carrying value of the Series B redeemable preferred stock is increased at each reporting date for accrued but unpaid dividends. When
dividends are paid, the carrying value of the Series B redeemable preferred stock is decreased. Accrued dividends are recognized through interest expense in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations at each reporting period based on the stated dividend rate plus any additional declared dividends.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, 1,000,000 shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock are authorized, issued and outstanding.

There were no dividends declared during the year ended December 31, 2013. During the year ended December 31, 2012, $2.0 million in dividends were
declared and paid on the Series B redeemable preferred stock.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, accrued and unpaid dividends are $1.3 million, $0.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, the Company recognized $1.0 million, $1.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively, of interest
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations on the Series B redeemable preferred stock.
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Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

In September 2010, the Company issued 48,689,555 shares of its Series A convertible preferred stock for aggregate proceeds of $24.3 million.

There were no dividends declared during the year ended December 31, 2013. For the year ended December 31, 2012, $22.6 million of dividends were
declared and paid on the Series A convertible preferred stock. There are no accrued but unpaid dividends on the Series A convertible preferred stock for any
periods presented. The Series A convertible preferred stock was recorded at fair value on the date of issuance, net of issuance costs. Shares of the Series A
convertible preferred stock are not currently redeemable. The Series A convertible preferred stock is classified outside of stockholders’ (deficit) equity
because, in the event of certain “liquidation events” that are not solely within the Company’s control (including merger, acquisition, or sale of all or
substantially all of the Company’s assets), the shares would become redeemable at the option of the holders. The Company has not adjusted the carrying
values of the Series A convertible preferred stock to its deemed liquidation values since a liquidation event was not probable as of any of the balance sheet
dates. Subsequent adjustments to increase or decrease the carrying values to the ultimate liquidation values will be made only if and when it becomes
probable that such a liquidation event will occur.

The various rights, preferences, and privileges of the Series A convertible preferred stock are as follows:

Liquidation Rights

Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up of the corporation, each holder of Series B redeemable preferred stock shall be
entitled to payment of the Series B redemption price for such shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock before any distribution or payment is made on
any shares of common stock or Series A convertible preferred stock. If the corporation does not have sufficient assets to redeem the Series B redeemable
preferred stock, then the entire assets available for distribution shall be distributed pro rata among the holders of the Series B redeemable preferred shares.

Once payment is made to the holders of the Series B redeemable preferred stock, the holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock are entitled to be paid
an amount in cash equal to the higher of either (i) the aggregate liquidation preference of $0.50 per share plus all declared and unpaid dividends on all shares
of Series A convertible preferred stock held by such holder before any distribution or payment is made upon any shares of common stock or (ii) such holder’s
pro rata amount of any assets of the corporation available for distribution assuming that immediately prior to such liquidation event each share of Series A
convertible preferred stock then outstanding had been converted into the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of shares of Series A
convertible preferred stock. If upon any such liquidation event, the corporation’s assets are insufficient to permit payment to such holders of the aggregate
amount that they are entitled to be paid, then the entire assets available for distribution to the corporation’s stockholders shall be distributed pro rata among
the holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock based upon the aggregate liquidation preference plus all declared and unpaid dividends on the shares of
Series A convertible preferred stock held by each such holder.

A liquidation event is defined as any acquisition of the corporation by means of merger or other form of corporate reorganization in which the outstanding
shares of the corporation are exchanged for securities or other consideration issued, or caused to be issued, by the acquiring corporation or its subsidiary
(other than a reincorporation transaction) or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation.

Conversion Rights

At any time and from time to time (including upon or in connection with a liquidation event), any holder of shares of Series A convertible preferred stock may
convert all or any portion of the Series A convertible preferred stock held by such holder into a number of shares of common stock computed by multiplying
the number of shares of Series A convertible preferred stock to be converted by the liquidation value of $0.50 per share, plus any declared but unpaid
dividends) and dividing the result by the original conversion price of $0.50 per share. The conversion price per share for Series A convertible preferred stock
shall be adjusted for certain recapitalizations, splits, combinations, common stock dividends, or similar events. At the current conversion prices, each share of
Series A convertible preferred stock will convert on a one-for-one basis into common stock.
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Each share of convertible preferred stock shall automatically be converted into shares of common stock at the then-effective conversion price upon the date
and time, or the occurrence of an event, specified by vote or written consent of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series A
convertible preferred stock.

Voting Rights

Each share of Series A convertible preferred stock has a number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. Certain
holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock, voting together as a single class on an as-if-converted basis, have the right to elect three directors. Certain
holders of the common stock, voting together as a single class, have the right to elect two directors.

Dividend Rights

No dividends or other distributions shall be declared by the board of directors at any time while any shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock are
outstanding unless the 8.0% cumulative dividends on the Series B Original Issue Price of $12.425371 per share have been paid to the holders of the Series B
redeemable preferred stock.

As and when dividends are declared or paid with respect to the Series A convertible preferred stock, the holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock
shall be entitled to participate in such dividends ratably on a per-share basis with respect to the shares of Series A convertible preferred stock. Dividends are
payable only when and if declared by the board of directors.

No dividends or other distributions shall be declared by the board of directors on any shares of common stock at any time any shares of Series A convertible
preferred stock are outstanding unless, a pro rata amount, on an as-converted basis, has been paid or declared and set apart for payment on the shares of
Series A convertible preferred stock.

Redemption Rights

The Series A convertible preferred stock is not mandatorily redeemable except in the event of certain liquidation events. If a deemed liquidation event were to
become probable to occur, the Company would need to reassess the ASC 480 definition of being a mandatorily redeemable financial instrument as
redemption would become “an event certain to occur.”

As described in Note 18 - Subsequent Events, on January 15, 2014, all of the issued and outstanding Series A convertible preferred stock were cancelled and
converted into shares of Parametric common stock, pursuant to terms of the merger agreement.

 
10. Common Stock

Shares Reserved for Issuance

Shares of common stock reserved for future issuance, on an as-converted basis, are as follows:
 

   As of December 31,  
   2013    2012    2011  

Shares reserved for future issuance under the equity incentive plan    3,996,793     4,543,324     3,814,846  
Outstanding stock options    11,003,207     10,456,676     3,241,611  

Conversion of Series A convertible preferred stock    48,689,555     48,689,555     48,689,555  
    

 
    

 
    

 

   63,689,555     63,689,555     55,746,012  
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Dividends

Dividends on common stock declared and paid by the Company’s board of directors were $16.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 on common
stock. There were no other dividends declared or paid by the board of directors for any other periods.

 
11. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognized stock-based compensation for employees and non-employees in connection with the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”)
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as follows:
 

   For the Year Ended December 31,  
       2013           2012           2011     
   (In thousands)  
Cost of revenue   $ 60    $ 60    $ 19  

Selling and marketing    343     281     132  

Product development    342     121     77  

General and administrative    1,818     523     3,521  
    

 
    

 
    

 

Total stock-based compensation   $ 2,563    $ 985    $ 3,749  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Determination of Fair Value
 

   For the Year Ended December 31,
   2013   2012   2011
Expected term (in years)   6.0   6.0   6.0
Risk-free interest rate   1.0%-1.1%   0.8%-1.1%   1.5%-2.4%

Expected volatility   50.4%-50.5%   50.5%-51.1%   51.2%-52.4%
Dividend rate   0%   0%   0%

The estimated grant date fair value of stock-based awards granted was calculated based on the assumptions discussed below:

The fair value of each grant of the stock options was determined by the Company’s board of directors using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and
assumptions discussed below. Each of these inputs is subjective and generally requires significant judgment to determine.
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Fair value of common stock – Because there has been no public market for the Company’s common stock, the board of directors has determined the fair value
of the common stock at the time of grant of the option by considering a number of objective and subjective factors, valuations of comparable companies,
operating and financial performance, the lack of liquidity of capital stock and general and industry specific economic outlook.

Expected Term – The expected term represents the period that its stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding. The Company estimates the expected
term for its equity incentive grants based on a study of several unrelated public peer companies within the Company’s industry that the Company considers to
be comparable to its business and the historical data on employee exercises and post-vesting employment termination behavior taking into account the
contractual life of the award.

Risk-Free Interest Rate – The risk-free interest rate is based on the interest yield in effect at the date of grant for zero coupon U.S. Treasury notes with
maturities approximately equal to the option’s expected term.

Expected Volatility – Since the Company does not have a trading history for its common stock, the expected volatility was derived from the historical stock
volatilities of several unrelated public companies within the Company’s industry that are considered to be comparable to the Company’s business over a
period equivalent to the expected term of the stock option grants.

Dividend Rate – The expected dividend was assumed to be zero based on the fact that the Company’s credit agreement prohibits the payment of dividends. A
zero dividend yield is used to compute stock option fair value.

The Company estimates its forfeiture rate based on an analysis of actual forfeitures and will continue to evaluate the adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on
actual forfeiture experience, analysis of employee turnover behavior, and other factors. The impact from any forfeiture rate adjustment would be recognized
in the period of adjustment and if the actual number of future forfeitures differs from estimates, the Company might be required to record adjustments to
stock-based compensation expense.

2011 Plan

In January 2011, the Company adopted the 2011 Plan that covers certain employees, consultants and directors of the Company who are entitled to stock
options and restricted stock, as applicable, pursuant to the provisions of respective award agreements. The 2011 Plan is shareholder-approved, which, as
amended, permits the granting of nonqualified stock options and restricted stock to the Company’s Participants of up to 15,000,000 shares.

Stock options are time-based and exercisable within ten years of the date of grant, but only to the extent they have vested. The options generally vest as
specified in the option agreements or upon a change in control of the Company, subject to continued employment with the Company. In the event participants
in the 2011 Plan cease to be employed or engaged by the Company, then all of the options would be forfeited if they are not exercised within 90 days.

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011:
 
      Options Outstanding  

   
Shares Available

for Grant   

Number of Shares
Underlying

Outstanding
Options   

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price    

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term    
Aggregate

Intrinsic Value 
             (In years)      
Outstanding - December 31, 2010    —      —     $ —       —      $ —    

Authorized option pool under 2011 Equity Incentive Plan    7,056,457        
Granted    (5,975,982)   5,975,982    0.50      
Forfeited    2,734,371    (2,734,371)   0.50      

    
 

   
 

     

Outstanding - December 31, 2011    3,814,846    3,241,611    0.50     9.17     4,149,262  
Additional options authorized    7,943,543        
Granted    (7,656,094)   7,656,094    2.03      
Forfeited    441,029    (441,029)   0.50      

    
 

   
 

     

Outstanding - December 31, 2012    4,543,324    10,456,676    1.62     9.29     5,842,409  
Granted    (1,175,000)   1,175,000    2.01      
Forfeited    628,469    (628,469)   0.97      

    
 

   
 

     

Outstanding - December 31, 2013    3,996,793    11,003,207    1.70     8.66     167,154  
    

 

   

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

Vested and expected to vest - December 31, 2012     10,456,676   $ 1.62     9.29    $ 5,842,409  
     

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

Exercisable - December 31, 2012     1,320,169   $ 0.50     8.14    $ 2,214,695  
     

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

Vested and expected to vest - December 31, 2013     11,003,207   $ 1.70     8.66    $ 167,154  
     

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

Exercisable - December 31, 2013     4,250,527   $ 1.38     8.03    $ 1,429,144  
     

 

   

 

    

 

    

 

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted to employees for years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $1.16, $1.02 and $0.46
per share, respectively. The aggregate fair value of stock options which vested for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $2.8 million,
$0.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively. None of the Company’s stock options have been exercised.
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The income tax benefit related to share-based compensation expense was $0.9 million, $0.4 million and $1.4 million for December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011,
respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the Company has stock-based compensation of $6.7 million related to unvested stock options, net of estimated
forfeitures that the Company expects to recognize over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years.

The following table summarizes additional information regarding outstanding and exercisable options under the 2011 Plan as of December 31, 2013:
 
    Options Outstanding    Options Exercisable  

Exercise
prices    

Number of
Shares

Underlying
Outstanding

Options    

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life    

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price per

Share    

Number of
Shares

Underlying
Vested Options   

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price Per

Share  
        (In years)              
$ 0.50     2,348,524     7.62    $ 0.50     1,792,816    $ 0.50  
$ 2.01     7,905,448     8.77    $ 2.01     2,103,265    $ 2.01  
$ 2.16     749,235     7.73    $ 2.16     354,446    $ 2.16  

    
 

        
 

  

   11,003,207         4,250,527    
    

 

        

 

  

Restricted Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the board of directors issued 2,822,582 shares of restricted common stock to one of the directors of VTB, in the
capacity of consultant director at a fair value of $1.21 per share. Restricted stock was valued with a price equal to the estimated fair value of the Company’s
common stock at the date of grant.

This restricted stock vested immediately upon its issuance but was subject to repurchase rights of the Company and the Company recognized stock-based
compensation of $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Parametric Merger

As described in Note 18 - Subsequent Events, as a result of the Merger on January 15, 2014 the exercise price of options outstanding under the Company’s
plans was increased and the number of stock options and restricted stock shares outstanding were decreased pursuant to a formula specified by the Merger
agreement.

 
12. 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan

In November 2011, the Company adopted a 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan that covers certain employees, consultants, and directors (“Participants”)
of the Company who are entitled to phantom units, as applicable, pursuant to the provisions of respective award agreements. This Phantom Equity
Appreciation Plan is shareholder-approved, which, as amended, permits the granting of phantom units to the Company’s Participants of up to 1,500,000 units.
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Under the plan, eligible participants are granted a plan unit at an exercise price which vests over a period of time, generally four years. Upon a change in
control, meaning any event that constitutes a qualifying liquidation event, the participant will earn and be paid a cash bonus for the vested plan units that is
equal to the difference between the exercise price of the plan on the date of grant and the fair market value of the plan unit on the date of the change in control
event. The amount of the cash bonus payment may be reduced for the amount of required employee payroll withholding tax. If Participants incur a
termination of service for any reason (excluding a termination for cause), (i) the Participants unvested phantom units shall immediately terminate and be
cancelled for no consideration and (ii) the Participants’ vested phantom units shall remain outstanding until a change of control. If Participants are terminated
for cause, the Participants shall forfeit their entire award, including all vested and unvested phantom units.

As December 31, 2013 and 2012, 1,255,280, and 1,389,702 Phantom units at a weighted-average exercise price of $0.89 and $0.93 have been granted and are
outstanding, respectively. No phantom units were granted for the year ended December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2013 compensation expense related to the Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan units remained unrecognized because as of those dates the
Company did not believe the change in control event was probable of occurring. If the change in control had occurred on December 31, 2013 or
December 31, 2012, the Company would have recognized $1.0 million and $0.5 million of compensation expense for the vested phantom units based on the
fair value of the Company’s common stock as determined by the board of directors of $1.72 per share and $2.18 per share as of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively.

 
13. Net (Loss) Income per Share of Common Stock

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock attributable to common stockholders:
 

   For the Year Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
   (In thousands, except per share data)  
Numerator:     

Basic and diluted:     
Net (Loss) Income   $ (6,163)  $ 26,460   $ 21,554  
Noncumulative dividends on Series A convertible preferred stock    —      (22,627)   —    
Undistributed earnings allocated to Series A convertible preferred stock    —      (2,222)   (12,699) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders, basic and
diluted   $ (6,163)  $ 1,611   $ 8,855  

    

 

   

 

   

 

Basic:     
Weighted-average shares used in computing net (loss) income per share

attributable to common stockholders, basic    35,282    35,282    33,952  
    

 

   

 

   

 

Diluted:     
Weighted-average shared used in computing net (loss) income per

share attributable to common stockholders, basic    35,282    35,282    33,952  
Added weighted-average effect of dilutive securities    —      983    972  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Weighted-average shared used in computing net (loss) income per share
attributable to common stockholders, diluted    35,282    36,265    34,924  

    

 

   

 

   

 

Net (loss) income per share attributable to common Stockholders:     
Basic   $ (0.17)  $ 0.05   $ 0.26  

    

 

   

 

   

 

Diluted   $ (0.17)  $ 0.04   $ 0.25  
    

 

   

 

   

 

The following weighted-average shares of common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation of diluted net (loss) income per share of common
stock for the periods presented because including them would have been antidilutive (in thousands).
 

   Year Ended    Year Ended    Year Ended  

   
December 31,

2013    
December 31,

2012    
December 31,

2011  

Stock options to purchase common stock    8,475     2,779     265  

 
14. Income Taxes

The geographical breakdown of (loss) income before the provision for income taxes is as follows:
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012    2011  
   (In thousands)  
Domestic   $(6,026)  $39,626    $35,336  
Foreign    953    842     —    

    
 

   
 

    
 

(Loss) Income before provision for income taxes   $(5,073)  $40,468    $35,336  
    

 

   

 

    

 

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
   (In thousands)  
Current:     

Federal   $(2,456)  $13,660   $13,752  
State    54    1,510    1,418  
Foreign    233    436    —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total current    (2,169)   15,606    15,170  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Deferred:     
Federal    3,574    (1,148)   (1,358) 

    



State  190   (120)  (30) 
Foreign    (505)   (330)   —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total deferred    3,259    (1,598)   (1,388) 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Total provision for income taxes   $ 1,090   $14,008   $13,782  
    

 

   

 

   

 

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented below:
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012   2011  
   (In thousands)  
U.S. federal taxes at statutory tax rate   $(1,776)  $14,024   $12,368  
State taxes, net of federal benefit    158    904    902  
Foreign tax rate differential    (282)   (49)   —    
Gain on bargain purchase    —      (804)   —    
Acquisition Costs    865    —      —    
Interest on Series B preferred stock    353    —      —    
Change in management position    1,177    —      —    
Permanent and other    595    (67)   512  

    
 

   
 

   
 

Provision for income taxes   $ 1,090   $14,008   $13,782  
    

 

   

 

   

 

 
   Years Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012  
   (In thousands)  
Deferred tax assets, current   $ 2,214   $ 4,452  
Deferred tax assets, non-current    1,952    2,266  
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current    (1,976)   (1,174) 

    
 

   
 

Total net deferred tax assets   $ 2,190   $ 5,544  
    

 

   

 

 
   Years Ended December 31,  
   2013   2012  
   (In thousands)  
Deferred tax assets:    

Allowance for doubtful accounts   $ 82   $ 84  
Inventory    757    1,093  
Compensation accrual    1,384    2,830  
Accruals and other    1,943    3,204  

    
 

   
 

Deferred tax assets    4,166    7,211  
    

 
   

 

Deferred tax liabilities:    
Property and equipment    (838)   (493) 
Intangible assets    (1,138)   (1,174) 

    
 

   
 

Deferred tax liabilities    (1,976)   (1,667) 
    

 

   

 

Net deferred tax assets   $ 2,190   $ 5,544  
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As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company did not have any net operating loss carry forwards from prior years.

The Company intends to indefinitely reinvest earnings from its foreign subsidiary and, accordingly, no related provision for U.S. federal and state income
taxes has been provided on such earnings. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company may be subject to both
U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and withholding taxes in the various countries. At December 31, 2013, the undistributed
earnings approximated $2.9 million. The determination of the future tax consequences of the remittance of these earnings is not practicable.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of total gross unrecognized tax benefit liabilities:
 

   Years Ended December 31,  
   2013    2012  
   (In thousands)  
Gross unrecognized tax benefit - beginning balance   $ 1,468    $ 1,069  
Increases related to tax positions taken during current year    —       399  

    
 

    
 

Gross unrecognized tax benefit - ending balance   $ 1,468    $ 1,468  
    

 

    

 

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the income tax provision. As of December 31, 2013, the
Company had $1.5 million of uncertain tax positions of which $1.0 million represent the amount that, if recognized, would impact the effective income tax
rate in future periods. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome of any particular uncertain tax position, the Company does not believe that the
amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly in the next twelve months. Interest and penalty accrued for the periods presented were
approximately $0.5 million.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal, various states and foreign tax jurisdictions. The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax
examination for the 2010 through 2013 tax years. Additionally, the Company is subject to various state income tax examinations for the 2009 through 2013
tax years.

 
15. Defined Contribution Plans

VTB maintains a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “Plan”) for all employees who are over the age of 21. Participants may make voluntary
contributions up to the maximum amount allowable by law. The Company may make contributions to the Plan on a discretionary basis that vest to the
participants ratably over a six-year graded vesting schedule, beginning with the second year of participation. The Company made an employer match to the
Plan which was insignificant for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and 2011.

TB Europe operates a defined contribution pension plan and the pension charge represents the amounts payable by the Company to the fund in respect of the
year. The assets of the plan are held separately from those of TB Europe in an independently administered fund. Pension costs for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were insignificant.

 
16. Geographical Information

The following table represents total net revenues based on where customers are physically located:
 

   Year Ended    Year Ended    Year Ended  
   December 31, 2013   December 31, 2012   December 31, 2011 
   (In thousands)  
United States   $ 124,285    $ 146,365    $ 131,115  
Europe    44,055     50,874     27,900  
Other    10,130     9,897     7,106  

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total revenues   $ 178,470    $ 207,136    $ 166,121  
    

 

    

 

    

 

Revenues earned in the United Kingdom comprised $29.0 million and $27.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012, respectively. No other
country outside of the United States comprised 10% or greater of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Property and equipment, net by location are summarized as follows:
 

   As of December 31,   As of December 31, 
   2013    2012  
   (In thousands)  
United States   $ 7,276    $ 5,006  
China    —       657  
United Kingdom    93     69  

    
 

    
 

Total property and equipment, net   $ 7,369    $ 5,732  
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17. Related Party

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 the Company incurred consulting fees of $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively towards professional
services provided by one of its shareholders.

Subordinated Notes

On August 30, 2013, VTBH issued $10.0 million of subordinated notes (the “August Notes”) to Juergen Stark, VTBH’s chief executive officer, Ronald
Doornink, a director of VTBH, and SG VTB Holdings, LLC (“SG VTB”), VTBH’s largest shareholder. The August Notes bear interest at a rate of
(i) 10% per annum for the first year and (ii) 20% per annum for all periods thereafter, with interest accruing and being added to the principal amount of the
August Notes quarterly. Principal and interest on the August Notes are due upon maturity of the August Notes, which shall occur on the one year anniversary
of the later of (i) the term loan maturity date under VTBH’s Loan and Security Agreement or (ii) the revolving line of credit termination date thereunder. The
proceeds from the August Notes were used to repay an equivalent portion of VTBH’s outstanding term loans.

In connection with the Third Amendment of VTBH’s Loan and Security Agreement, on January 15, 2014 VTBH issued an additional $7.0 million
subordinated note (the “January Note”) to SG VTB, the proceeds of which were applied against the outstanding balance of the term loan under the Loan and
Security Agreement. The January Note bears interest at a rate of (i) 10% per annum until December 31, 2014 (which is the maturity date of the January Note)
and (ii) 20% per annum for all periods thereafter, with interest accruing and being added to the principal amount of the January Note quarterly. The other
terms of the January Note are substantially similar to the terms of the August Notes.

 
18. Subsequent Events

Merger Agreement

On January 15, 2014 (the “Closing Date”), VTBH and Parametric completed the merger (the “Merger”) of Merger Sub with and into VTBH in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement. As a result of the Merger, VTBH, the surviving entity in the Merger, became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Parametric and a publicly traded Company NASDAQ: (PAMT).

In connection with the Merger, Parametric issued to the former holders of VTBH common stock and Series A Preferred Stock an aggregate of
30,227,100 shares of Parametric common stock, par value $0.001 per share (“Parametric Common Stock”). The number of shares of Parametric Common
Stock issued was computed in accordance with a formula specified in the Merger Agreement using an exchange ratio of 0.35997 shares of Parametric
Common Stock for every one share of VTBH common stock or Series A Preferred Stock. In addition, in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement,
all outstanding options to purchase shares of VTBH common stock were converted into options to purchase shares of Parametric Common Stock and were
assumed by Parametric. These newly issued shares of Parametric Common Stock, together with the converted options, represented approximately 80% of the
total issued and outstanding shares of Parametric Common Stock, on a fully-diluted basis, as of the Closing Date.

For accounting purposes, the Merger was treated as a “reverse acquisition” and VTBH was considered the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, VTBH’s
historical results of operations will replace Parametric’s historical results of operations for all periods prior to the Merger, and for all periods following the
Merger, the results of operations of both companies will be included in Parametric’s financial statements.
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Loan Amendments

On January 15, 2014 the Company entered into a third amendment with its lender to among other things: (a) permit the Company to incur an additional
$7 million of subordinated debt; (b) change the term loan maturity to February 28, 2014; (c) change the revolving credit maturity to September 27, 2014;
(d) reduce the revolving loan commitment to $35 million on and after March 1, 2014; (e) increase the applicable libor and base rate interest margins, and
(f) modify certain financial covenants (see Note 7 – Long-Term Debt), (g) reduce the swing loan commitment amount to $2.5 million, and (h) increase
eligible amount outstanding to $25 million for annual clean down requirement of revolving line of credit and swing loan.

On March 13, 2014, the “Company entered into a Fourth Amendment with its lenders, to among other things, (a) increase the maximum principal amount of
the lenders’ revolving loan commitment between February 28, 2014 and April 15, 2014 from $35 million to approximately $39 million, then reverting back to
$35 million after April 15, 2014; (b) provide that the Borrowers, on or prior to April 15, 2014, will reduce its revolving loans outstanding to the lesser of
$35 million or the Company’s borrowing base (calculated in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement) as of such date, (c) waive the Company’s
obligation to deliver certain certificates regarding the its liquidity and borrowing base for the fiscal month ended February 28, 2014, and to specify the
delivery date of certain March certificates during March 2014 and April 2014, (d) eliminate a requirement that the Borrowers reduce the aggregate dollar
amount of revolving loans and swing loans outstanding under the Credit Agreement to an amount no greater than $25 million for a thirty consecutive day
period during the first fiscal quarter of each fiscal year, and (e) eliminate the lenders’ obligation to make additional revolving loan commitments after
February 28, 2014, in each case, effective as of February 28, 2014. In addition, PNC Bank, N.A. and the other lenders will receive an agreed upon fee in
connection with the Amendment.

In connection with the Amendment, SG Growth Partners I LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“SG Growth Partners”), has agreed to purchase from the
Borrowers, and the Borrowers have agreed to issue to SG Growth Partners, subordinated notes in an amount (up to an aggregate of $10 million) equal to the
amount by which the aggregate dollar amount of revolving loans outstanding under the Credit Agreement exceeds, or the Company’s liquidity capacity is less
than, certain agreed upon amounts on specified dates beginning April 4, 2014, with the proceeds of such issuances required to be applied to reduce the
amount of revolving loans outstanding under the Credit Agreement. SG Growth Partners is the sole member of SG VTB Holdings, LLC (“SG VTB”), the
Company’s largest shareholder. Under the terms of the Amendment, the terms of any subordinated notes issued to SG Growth Partners will be substantially
similar to the terms of the subordinated note issued to SG VTB by Turtle Beach in connection with the third amendment to the Credit Agreement.

Monthly Closing Dates

As disclosed in Note 1 Basis of Presentation, for 2013 and prior years, the Company historically recorded its results on a four-four-five week basis such that
its fiscal quarters end on the last Saturday of each calendar quarter. Effective January 31, 2014 VTBH began closing its books on a calendar month and
quarter basis.

 
19. Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited)

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s consolidated unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2013,
and 2012, in thousands of dollars.
 
   Quarters (unaudited)      
   First   Second   Third   Fourth    YTD  

Net revenue:        
2013   $29,533   $24,520   $38,299   $ 86,118    $178,470  
2012   $22,939   $29,524   $44,636   $110,037    $207,136  

Cost of revenue:        
2013   $20,908   $18,198   $29,653   $ 59,382    $128.141  
2012   $15,794   $20,005   $27,090   $ 69,906    $132,795  

Income (loss) from continuing operations:        
2013   $ (338)  $ (5,755)  $ (3,301)  $ 10,992    $ 1,598  
2012   $ 2,659   $ 5,017   $ 9,443   $ 25,791    $ 42,910  

Net (loss) income:        
2013   $ (2,304)  $ (3,338)  $ (1,402)  $ 881    $ (6,163) 
2012   $ 917   $ 3,185   $ 5,188   $ 17,170    $ 26,460  
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Exhibit 99.4

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On January 15, 2014, Parametric Sound Corporation (“Parametric”) completed a merger (the “Merger”) of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Paris
Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”), with and into VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“VTBH”), in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 5, 2013 among the Company, VTBH and Merger Sub (the “Merger Agreement”). As
a result of the Merger, VTBH, the surviving entity in the Merger, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parametric.

The merger is being accounted for as a reverse acquisition under the acquisition method of accounting. For accounting purposes, VTBH is
considered to be the accounting acquirer. This results in VTBH allocating the total purchase consideration issued in the acquisition to the fair value of
Parametric’s assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date, with any excess purchase consideration being recorded as goodwill.

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet is presented to show how Parametric might have looked had the acquisition
occurred as of December 31, 2013. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 is
presented to show how Parametric might have looked had the acquisition occurred as of January 1, 2013, the beginning of the presented period.

This pro forma combined consolidated information is based on, and should be read in conjunction with, the following:
 

 •  The historical audited financial statements of Parametric as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, included in a Form 10-K
filed on November 26, 2013;

 

 •  The historical unaudited financial statements of Parametric for the three months ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, included in a Form
10-Q filed on February 10, 2014; and

 

 •  The historical audited financial statements of VTBH as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, included as
Exhibit 99.3 in this Form 8-K/A.

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet was derived from VTBH’s audited financial statements and Parametric’s
unaudited financial statements as of December 31, 2013. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2013 was derived from the audited financial statements of VTBH for the year ended December 31, 2013 and Parametric’s unaudited results
from operations for the three months ended December 31, 2013 and the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information was prepared, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The unaudited pro forma adjustments reflecting the acquisition have been prepared in accordance with the
business combination accounting guidance and reflect the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the acquired assets and liabilities based upon the
preliminary estimate of fair values, using the assumptions set forth in the notes to the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information. The
detailed assumptions used to prepare the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information are contained in the notes hereto and such
assumptions should be reviewed in their entirety.

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information is provided for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative
of the operating results or financial position that would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed during the periods presented above, nor is it
indicative of the future results or financial position of the combined company. In connection with the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial
information, the total purchase consideration was allocated based on the best estimates of fair value. The allocation is dependent upon certain valuation and
other analyses that are not yet final. Accordingly, the pro forma acquisition price adjustments are preliminary and subject to further adjustments as additional
information become available and as additional analyses are performed. There can be no assurances that the final valuations will not result in material
changes to the preliminary estimated purchase price allocation. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information also does not give
effect to the potential impact of current financial conditions, any anticipated synergies, operating efficiencies or cost savings that may result from the
transaction or any integration costs. Furthermore, the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statements of operations do not include certain
nonrecurring charges which resulting directly from the acquisition as described in the accompanying notes.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet

as of December 31, 2013
(In thousands, except share and per share date)

 
   Historical              

   

VTB
Holdings

Inc.   

Parametric
Sound

Corporation  
Combined
Subtotal   

Pro Forma
Adjustments     

Unaudited
Pro Forma
Combined  

ASSETS         
Current assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 6,509   $ 4,668   $ 11,177   $ —       $ 11,177  
Accounts receivable, net    48,542    117    48,659    —        48,659  
Inventories, net    49,643    724    50,367    —        50,367  
Deferred tax assets    2,214    —      2,214    6,686   4(a)   8,900  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    3,561    172    3,733    —        3,733  
Prepaid income taxes    2,925    —      2,925    —        2,925  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total current assets    113,394    5,681    119,075    6,686      125,761  
Property and equipment, net    7,369    211    7,580    —        7,580  
Deferred tax assets, long term portion    827    —      827    —        827  
Intangible assets, net    3,972    1,454    5,426    34,966   4(b)   40,392  
Goodwill    —      —      —      70,631   4(c)   70,631  
Other assets    1,745    —      1,745    —        1,745  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

TOTAL ASSETS   $127,307   $ 7,346   $134,653   $ 112,283     $246,936  
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

     

 

LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY         

Current liabilities:         

Revolving line of credit   $ 39,736   $ —     $ 39,736   $ —       $ 39,736  
Term loan, current    14,500    —      14,500    —        14,500  
Accounts payable    44,136    1,110    45,246    —        45,246  
Accrued liabilities    8,615    97    8,712    3,076   4(d)   11,788  
Due to shareholders    3,125    —      3,125    —        3,125  
Derivative liability    392    —      392    —        392  
Income taxes payables    —      —      —      —        —    
Other current liabilities    705    —      705    —        705  
Capital lease obligation    —      38    38    —        38  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total current liabilities    111,209    1,245    112,454    3,076      115,530  

Capital lease obligation, long-term portion    —      85    85    —        85  
Term loan, long-term portion    —      —      —      —        —    
Series B redeemable preferred stock    13,713    —      13,713    —        13,713  
Subordinated loan    10,342    —      10,342    —        10,342  
Income tax payable, long-term portion    1,986    —      1,986    —        1,986  
Due to shareholders, noncurrent portion    —      —      —      —        —    
Deferred tax liabilities    850    —      850    13,476   4(e)   14,326  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES    138,100    1,330    139,430    16,552      155,982  

Series A convertible preferred stock    24,345    —      24,345    (24,345)  4(f)   —    

STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY:         
Parametric common stock    —      7    7    30   4(g)   37  
VTBH common stock    353    —      353    (353)  4(g)   —    
Additional paid-in capital    (54,371)   23,066    (31,305)   105,621   4(g)   74,316  
Accumulated other comprehensive income    105    —      105    —        105  
(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings    18,775    (17,057)   1,718    14,778   4(h)   16,496  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY    (35,138)   6,016    (29,122)   120,076      90,954  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY   $127,307   $ 7,346   $134,653   $ 112,283     $246,936  

    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

     

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements.
The pro forma adjustments are explained in Note 4.
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Parametric Sound Corporation
Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2013
(In thousands, except per share and per share date)

 
   Historical              

   

VTB
Holdings

Inc.   

Parametric
Sound

Corporation   
Combined
Subtotal   

Pro Forma
Adjustments     

Unaudited
Pro Forma
Combined  

Net Revenue   $ 178,470   $ 522   $178,992   $ —       $ 178,992  
Cost of revenues    128,141    274    128,415    692   5(a)   129,107  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Gross profit    50,329    248    50,577    (692)     49,885  
Operating expenses:         

Selling and marketing    31,645    2,136    33,781    60   5(a)   33,841  
Product development    4,873    2,204    7,077    (124)  5(a)   6,953  
General and administrative    8,349    2,798    11,147    —        11,147  
Business transaction    3,864    2,277    6,141    (6,141)  5(b)   —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total operating expenses    48,731    9,415    58,146    (6,205)     51,941  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Operating income (loss)    1,598    (9,167)   (7,569)   5,513      (2,056) 
        

Interest expense, net    (6,626)   1    (6,625)   —        (6,625) 
Other expense    (45)   (7)   (52)   —        (52) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

     
 

Total other (expense)    (6,671)   (6)   (6,677)   —        (6,677) 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

(Loss) income before provision for income taxes    (5,073)   (9,173)   (14,246)   5,513      (8,733) 
        

Provision for income taxes (income tax benefit)    1,090    —      1,090    2,040   5(c)   3,130  
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 
     

 

Net income (loss)   $ (6,163)  $ (9,173)  $ (15,336)  $ 3,473     $ (11,863) 
    

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

     

 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders:         
Basic   $ (6,163)  $ (9,173)      $ (11,863) 

    

 

   

 

       

 

Diluted   $ (6,163)  $ (9,173)      $ (11,863) 
    

 

   

 

       

 

Net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders:         
Basic   $ (0.17)  $ (1.36)      $ (0.32) 

    

 

   

 

       

 

Diluted   $ (0.17)  $ (1.36)      $ (0.32) 
    

 

   

 

       

 

Weighted average shares used in computing net income (loss) per share
attributable to common stockholders:         

Basic    35,282,286    6,745,622        36,972,722  
    

 

   

 

       

 

Diluted    35,282,286    6,745,622        36,972,722  
    

 

   

 

       

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements.
The pro forma adjustments are explained in Note 5.

 
P-3



1. Description of Transaction and Basis of Presentation

Description of Transaction

On January 15, 2014, Parametric Sound Corporation (“Parametric”) completed a merger (the “Merger”) of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Paris
Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Merger Sub”), with and into VTB Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“VTBH”), in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 5, 2013 among the Company, VTBH and Merger Sub (the “Merger Agreement”). As
a result of the Merger, VTBH, the surviving entity in the Merger, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parametric.

In connection with the Merger, Parametric issued to the former holders of VTBH common stock and Series A Preferred Stock an aggregate of
30,227,100 shares of Parametric common stock, par value $0.001 per share. The number of shares of common stock issued was computed in accordance with
the formula specified in the Merger Agreement using a Per Share Number (as defined in the Merger Agreement) of 0.35997. In addition, in accordance with
the terms of the Merger Agreement, all then outstanding options to purchase shares of VTBH common stock were converted into options to purchase
3,960,783 shares of Parametric common stock and were assumed (the “Converted Options”). These newly issued shares of common stock, together with the
Converted Options, represented approximately 80% of the total issued and outstanding shares of Company common stock, on a fully-diluted basis at the
Merger date.

The issued share capital on the assumed acquisition date of December 31, 2013 was 37,495,722 shares of common stock and consisted of
7,268,622 shares of Parametric and 30,227,100 shares assumed issued to security holders of VTBH.

Basis of Presentation

The reverse acquisition of Parametric by VTBH is being accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting for business
combinations. The excess purchase consideration over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill.

The historical financial information has been adjusted to give pro forma effect to events that are (i) directly attributable to the transaction,
(ii) factually supportable and (iii) with respect to the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statements of operations, expected to have a continuing
impact on the combined results. The pro forma adjustments are preliminary and based on estimates of the fair value and useful lives of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and have been prepared to illustrate the estimated effect of the transaction and certain other adjustments.

Under the acquisition method, acquisition-related transaction costs (e.g. advisory, legal, valuation and other professional fees) are not
included as consideration transferred but are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred. These costs are not presented in the
unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statements of operations because they will not have a continuing impact on the combined results.

 
2. Purchase Consideration Allocation

The purchase consideration in a reverse acquisition is determined with reference to the fair value of equity interests that the accounting
acquirer (VTBH) has issued to the owners of the accounting acquiree (Parametric). The fair value of Parametric’s common stock was determined based on the
closing stock price of Parametric’s common stock as of January 15, 2014.

The estimated total purchase consideration is calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and per share data):
 

Outstanding shares of common stock of Parametric as of Merger date    7,274,622  
Closing price per share of Parametric common stock as of January 15, 2014   $ 14.30  

    
 

Total purchase consideration   $ 104,027  
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The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the estimated purchase consideration to the fair values of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed of Parametric, with the excess recorded as goodwill (dollars in thousands):
 

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 4,668  
Accounts receivable    117  
Deferred tax asset    5,890  
Other current assets    896  
Property and equipment    211  
Intangible assets:   

In-process research and development (IPR&D) (1)    27,100  
Developed technology (2)    8,880  
Customer relationships (2)    270  
Trade name (2)    170  

Goodwill (3)    70,631  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    (1,207)
Capital lease obligation    (123)
Deferred tax liability    (13,476)

    
 

Total   $104,027  
    

 

 
(1) The amount allocated to in-process research and development represents an estimate of the fair value of purchased in-process technology for research

projects, or IPR&D. IPR&D is considered an indefinite-lived intangible asset until the completion or abandonment of the associated research and
development efforts. Accordingly, during the development period, the IPR&D is not amortized but subject to impairment review. The IPR&D is
reflected as an acquired asset in the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet. No amortization of the IPR&D has been reflected in the
unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial statements as the assets are considered indefinite-lived.

(2) The acquired intangible assets relating to developed technology, customer relationships and trade name are subject to amortization. Developed
technology will be amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of approximately eight years with the amortization being included
within cost of revenue. Customer relationships and trade name will be amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of two years and
five years with the amortization being included within sales and marketing expense.

(3) The excess purchase consideration over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized but
tested for impairment on an annual basis or when the indicator for impairment exists.

The preliminary valuation of the intangible assets acquired was determined using currently available information and reasonable and
supportable assumptions. The fair value of IPR&D, developed technology, and trade name intangible assets was determined using the “income method,”
which starts with a forecast of all the expected future net cash flows from such assets. Because customer relationships are not mature, the fair value customer
relationship intangible assets were determined using the “cost method”, which starts with an analysis of the estimated costs to replace the existing asset. Some
of the more significant assumptions inherent in the development of intangible asset values, from the perspective of a market participant, include: the amount
and timing of projected future cash flows (including revenue, cost of sales, research and development costs, sales and marketing expenses, capital
expenditures and working capital requirements) as well as estimated contributory asset charges; the discount rate selected to measure the risks inherent in the
future cash flows; and the assessment of the asset’s life cycle and the competitive trends impacting the asset, among other factors.
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3. Conforming Adjustments

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information are those set out
in VTBH’s audited financial statements as of December 31, 2013 and Parametric’s audited financial statements as of September 30, 2013. Certain
reclassification adjustments were made to the historical consolidated statements of operations of Parametric to conform the presentation to that of VTBH as
the accounting acquirer and are reflected in the historical column for Parametric.

 
4. Unaudited Pro Forma Adjustments – Balance Sheet

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet has been prepared assuming an acquisition date of December 31, 2013
with the following pro forma adjustments:
 

 
4a) Deferred Tax Assets – Represents the adjustment related to the net increase in Parametric’s and VTBH’s accrued expenses for estimated

transaction costs and the reversal of the valuation allowance against Parametric’s net operating loss carryforwards as the combined company
expects to be able to utilize them.

 

 4b) Intangible Assets – Represents the adjustment to record the acquired intangible assets from Parametric at fair value, as follows (in thousands):
 

Preliminary fair value of acquired intangible assets   $36,420  
Eliminate Parametric’s historical intangible assets    (1,454)

    
 

Total   $34,966  
    

 

 

 4c) Goodwill – Represents the adjustment to record the excess between the fair value of the consideration transferred and the preliminary values
assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

 

 4d) Accrued Liabilities – Represents the accrual for estimated transaction costs of $3.1 million related to the acquisition that are not reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

 

 4e) Deferred Tax Liabilities – Represents the adjustment related to the net increase in the acquired intangible assets.
 

 4f) Series A Convertible Preferred Stock – Represents the cancellation and conversion of VTBH’s outstanding Series A convertible preferred stock
into shares of Parametric’s common stock on the close of the acquisition.

 

 4g) Common Stock and Additional Paid-In Capital – The adjustments made to common stock and additional paid-in capital are as follows (in
thousands):

 
Common Stock   

Record the par value of the common stock that was issued   $ 30  
Eliminate VTBH’s historical issued and outstanding common stock    (353)

    
 

Total common stock   $ (323)
    

 

Additional Paid-In Capital   
Eliminate Parametric’s historical additional paid-in capital   $ (23,066)
Record the conversion of VTBH’s outstanding Series A convertible preferred stock

into Parametric common stock    24,345  
Record the conversion of VTBH’s issued and outstanding common stock into

Parametric common stock    315  
Record purchase consideration, net of par value of Parametric common stock    104,027  

    
 

Total additional paid-in capital   $105,621  
    

 

Total common stock and additional paid-in capital   $105,298  
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 4h) Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) – The adjustments made to retained earnings (accumulated deficit) are as follows:
 

Eliminate Parametric’s historical accumulated deficit   $17,057  
Accrue estimated transaction costs to be incurred by Parametric and VTBH through

accumulated deficit, net of expected tax impact    (2,279) 
    

 

Total   $14,778  
    

 

 
5. Unaudited Pro Forma Adjustments – Statements of Operations

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statements of operations were prepared assuming an acquisition date of January 1, 2013
with the following pro forma adjustments:
 

 5a) Intangible Asset Amortization – Represents the additional amortization recognized on the acquired intangible assets that are subject to
amortization.

 

 5b) Transaction Costs – Represents the elimination of acquisition-related transaction and merger related costs as they have no continuing impact on
the combined consolidated results of operations.

 

 
5c) Provision for Income Taxes – Represents the change in the provision for income tax consisting of the income tax effect of the respective pro

forma adjustments based on the statutory rate of 37%, except for the pro forma adjustments related to the amortization of intangible assets and the
non-deductibility of certain transaction costs.
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Exhibit 99.5

Parametric Sound Provides Post Merger Update
Introduces 2014 Outlook for the Combined Company

SAN DIEGO, CA, March 27, 2014 – Parametric Sound Corporation (NASDAQ: PAMT) today filed an amendment to its Current Report on Form 8-K
originally filed on January 16, 2014 which includes audited financial statements for Turtle Beach (VTB Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries) along with
unaudited pro forma financial information of the combined companies as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Business Update
 

 •  Merger between Parametric Sound and Turtle Beach successfully closed January 15, 2014 and the teams are now fully integrated.
 

 •  Corporate name change to Turtle Beach Corporation and ticker symbol change to HEAR is underway and expected to be complete by May. The
new name will not affect our business, operations, reporting requirements or stock price but will require a new CUSIP.

 

 •  First-to-market with three Xbox One compatible headsets at retail on March 6, including a licensed model for the highly anticipated game
Titanfall released on March 11.

 

 •  Sony PlayStation® 4 and Microsoft Xbox® One consoles continue to report strong sales, providing a rapidly growing installed base of new
generation platforms, which we estimate to be over 10 million units already.

 

 •  Sales for the first quarter of 2014 are trending positively and expected to increase approximately 10% over the same period in 2013, which was a
strong quarter, and more than 50% over the same period in 2012.

 

 •  Received U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) clearance for the marketing of a product incorporating the HyperSound® Audio System as a
hearing improvement device.

 

 •  HyperSound sales team in place and driving revenue growth in multiple commercial segments. Development of first product for hearing impaired
listeners underway for anticipated 2015 launch. R&D staffing expanded and pursuing further HyperSound technology advancements.

 

 •  Work continues and is progressing well on improving the company’s credit facility to provide a global line more suited to the company’s needs
and growth plans.

“We are very excited about the strong prospects we believe exist for our Turtle Beach and HyperSound businesses,” said Juergen Stark, chief executive
officer of Parametric Sound. “The recent merger has created a company with significant growth opportunities



in consumer, commercial and healthcare audio. Our plan is to leverage our proprietary audio technology and operational strengths to continue to bring to
market innovative, high quality audio products that elevate the consumer experience and drive sustainable growth and increased shareholder value.”

2013 Turtle Beach (VTB Holdings, Inc.) Review

The audited consolidated financial statements of Turtle Beach for years ended December 31, 2013 and prior relate to a pre-Closing period, and therefore all
information presented herein, including any per share information, relates to Turtle Beach on a standalone basis and not Parametric Sound or the combined
company. The first combined results will be reported for the first quarter ending March 31, 2014.

2013 net revenue was $178.5 million, compared with $207.1 million in 2012. As expected, transitions of both the Microsoft Xbox and Sony PlayStation
consoles in 2013 contributed to a down year for the gaming industry. Microsoft’s delayed implementation of headset audio for the Xbox One console until
March 2014 also meaningfully reduced our Q4 revenues. 2013 Adjusted EBITDA (as defined below) was $13.9 million, compared with $47.4 million in the
year ago period. See the accompanying tables at the end of this release for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA.

“The gaming industry experienced a cyclical event last year as Microsoft and Sony each introduced new consoles for the first time in eight years,”
commented Stark. “The temporary headwinds we experienced throughout most of last year, as consumers delayed purchases in advance of the introduction of
new consoles, have begun to ease. The consumer response to Xbox One and PlayStation 4 has been overwhelmingly positive creating a rapidly growing
installed base, which we estimate to be over 10 million units already. As the leader in gaming headsets we are well positioned to benefit from the anticipated
growth in the segment as consumers purchase new consoles over the next three years and beyond.”

Outlook

For 2014, the company currently forecasts net revenues in the Turtle Beach headset segment to be in the range of $210 to $230 million representing growth of
approximately 24% over 2013 levels at the mid-point of the range. The strong anticipated revenue growth is primarily driven by the expected rebound in the
core console gaming headset market, which we expect to be a multi-year trend. Net revenues from HyperSound are expected to be in the range of $1 to $4
million consistent with our expectations for the early stages of commercializing that technology. Gross margins are expected to be approximately 30%, a 150
basis point increase over 2013 with further improvement expected in 2015 as Turtle Beach’s gaming headset product portfolio for new consoles expands and
HyperSound becomes a more material part of the revenues.

Full Year Adjusted EBITDA for the Turtle Beach headset segment is expected to be in the range of $30 to $35 million representing growth of over 100%
from 2013 and an Adjusted EBITDA margin of approximately 15% at the mid-point of the range, up from approximately 8% in 2013 (approximately a 700
basis point improvement). The company



plans to invest approximately $10 million dollars in HyperSound in 2014 in order to capitalize on the broad array of expected future opportunities for this
technology. Total company Adjusted EBITDA for 2014 therefore is expected to be in the range of $20 to $25 million, representing anticipated growth of
approximately 140% over the pro-forma combined company Adjusted EBITDA for 2013 at the mid-point of the range. The combined Adjusted EBITDA
range for 2014 also reflects approximately $3 million of additional public company associated general and administrative costs. As of the completion of the
merger, the combined company had approximately 37 million shares outstanding.

Stark concluded, “We believe 2014 represents the initial stage of the post console transition rebound for the gaming industry and Turtle Beach. The recent
launch of our Xbox One compatible headset is another step towards returning our business to a more normalized run rate. In addition, we continue to be very
excited about the market opportunities from our HyperSound technology. We expect our top-line momentum to accelerate in 2015 driven by the introduction
of a full line of Turtle Beach headsets for new generational consoles including more mid-tier and high-end styles, and fully wireless options. At the same
time, we expect that the commercialization of HyperSound will begin contributing much more meaningfully to our financial results in 2015 as we continue to
grow the commercial business for HyperSound and introduce the first HyperSound product for people with hearing impairments.”

Conference Call Details

Juergen Stark, CEO, and John Hanson, CFO, will host a conference call and simultaneous webcast to discuss the financial results and outlook today,
March 27, 2014, at 1:30 PM Pacific Time / 4:30 PM Eastern Time. To participate in the conference call, investors should dial (877) 303-9855 (domestic) or
(408) 337-0154 (international) 10 minutes prior to the scheduled start of the call. A simultaneous audio-only webcast of the call may be accessed on the
Internet at www.parametric sound.com. An archive of the webcast will be available on the company’s website through June 30, 2014, and a recorded replay of
the call will be available one week at (855) 859-2056 or (404) 537-3406 and entering conference ID number 17105196.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to its reported results, Parametric Sound has included in this earnings release certain financial results that the Securities and Exchange
Commission defines as “non-GAAP financial measures.” Management believes that such non-GAAP financial measures, when read in conjunction with the
Company’s reported results, can provide useful supplemental information for investors analyzing period to period comparisons of the Company’s results.
These non-GAAP financial measures relate to presenting Adjusted EBITDA, as defined by the Company, for the years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012.
Please see a reconciliation of GAAP results to Adjusted EBITDA which is included below for the years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012.

##



All trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

About Parametric Sound

Parametric Sound Corporation is an audio technology company that markets innovative products under the Turtle Beach and HyperSound brands.

The company designs and markets premium audio peripherals for video game consoles, personal computers and mobile devices under the brand Turtle Beach
(TurtleBeach.com), including officially-licensed headsets for the next-generation Xbox One and PlayStation 4 consoles. Turtle Beach is the leading brand in
video game audio and the official audio provider for Major League Gaming, the world’s largest eSports league, and Twitch, the world’s leading video
platform and community for gamers.

Under the brand HyperSound (HyperSound.com), the company markets pioneering directed audio solutions that beam sound to a specific listening area
without the ambient noise of traditional speakers. HyperSound has applications in digital signage and kiosks, consumer electronics and health care.

Forward-Looking Statements

This press release includes forward-looking information and statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Except for historical information
contained in this release, statements in this release may constitute forward-looking statements regarding assumptions, projections, expectations, targets,
intentions or beliefs about future events. Forward looking statements are based on management’s statements containing the words “may”, “could”, “would”,
“should”, “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “target”, “project”, “intend” and similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in
any forward-looking statement. Forward-looking statements are based on management’s current belief, as well as assumptions made by, and information
currently available to, management.

While the Company believes that its expectations are based upon reasonable assumptions, there can be no assurances that its goals and strategy will be
realized. Numerous factors, including risks and uncertainties, may affect actual results and may cause results to differ materially from those expressed in
forward-looking statements made by the Company or on its behalf. Some of these factors include, but are not limited to, the substantial uncertainties inherent
in acceptance of existing and future products, the difficulty of commercializing and protecting new technology, the impact of competitive products and
pricing, general business and economic conditions, risks associated with the expansion of our business including the implementation of any businesses we
acquire, our indebtedness, and other factors discussed in our public filings, including the risk factors included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
and other periodic reports filed with the SEC, as well as the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed in connection with our merger with Turtle
Beach Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission the Company any is under no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement after the date of this release whether as a
result of new information, future developments or otherwise.

For more information:

Anne Rakunas
ICR
Anne Rakunas@icrinc.com
+1-310-954-1113

David Lowey
Corporate Communications
david.lowey@turtlebeach.com
+1-914-844-2759



SCHEDULE 1

VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2013   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012  
Net Revenue   $ 178,470   $ 207,136  
Cost of Revenue    128,141    132,795  

    
 

   
 

Gross Profit    50,329    74,341  
Operating expenses:    

Selling and marketing    31,645    22,837  
Product development    4,873    2,099  
General and administrative    8,349    6,153  
Business transaction    3,864    342  

    
 

   
 

Total operating expenses    48,731    31,431  
    

 
   

 

Operating income    1,598    42,910  
Other expense (income), net:    

Interest expense    6,626    4,738  
Other expense, net    45    7  
Gain on bargain purchase from acquisition    —      (2,303) 

    
 

   
 

Total other expense, net    6,671    2,442  
    

 
   

 

(Loss) income before provision for income taxes    (5,073)   40,468  
Provision for income taxes    1,090    14,008  

    
 

   
 

Net (loss) income    (6,163)   26,460  
Non-cumulative dividends and earnings allocated to Series A Convertible Preferred    —      (24,849) 

    
 

   
 

Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders   $ (6,163)  $ 1,611  
    

 

   

 

Net (loss) income per share attributable to common stockholders:    
Basic   $ (0.17)  $ 0.05  

    

 

   

 

Diluted   $ (0.17)  $ 0.04  
    

 

   

 

Weighted-average shares used to computing net (loss) income per share attributable to common stockholders:    
Basic    35,282    35,282  

    

 

   

 

Diluted    35,282    36,265  
    

 

   

 



Schedule II

VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)
 

ASSETS   

As of
December 31,

2013   

As of
December 31,

2012  
CURRENT ASSETS:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 6,509   $ 5,219  
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $8,980 as of December 31, 2013 and $14,404 December 31, 2012    48,542    65,586  
Inventories, net    49,643    40,706  
Deferred tax assets    3,299    4,452  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    2,476    1,932  
Prepaid income taxes    2,482    1,198  

    
 

   
 

Total Current Assets    112,951    119,093  
Property and equipment, net    7,369    5,732  
Deferred financing costs, net    1,575    2,128  
Deferred tax assets, long-term portion    827    2,266  
Intangible assets, net    3,972    4,955  
Other assets    170    21  

    
 

   
 

TOTAL ASSETS   $ 126,864   $ 134,195  
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT    
CURRENT LIABILITIES:    

Revolving line of credit   $ 39,736   $ 33,000  
Term loan, current portion    14,500    15,000  
Accounts payable    44,136    24,190  
Accrued liabilities    8,615    12,496  
Due to shareholders, current portion    3,125    3,125  
Income taxes payable    —      8,106  
Other current liabilities    654    470  

    
 

   
 

Total Current Liabilities    110,766    96,387  
Term loan, long-term portion    —      26,250  
Due to shareholders, long-term portion    —      3,125  
Series B redeemable preferred stock    13,713    12,703  
Income tax payable, long-term portion    1,986    1,933  
Deferred tax liabilities    850    1,174  
Subordinated loan    10,342    —    

    
 

   
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES    137,657    141,572  
    

 
   

 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 9)    
Series A convertible stock, $0.01 par value—50,000,000 shares authorized; 48,689,555 shares issued and outstanding

as of December 31, 2013, December 31, 2012    24,345    24,345  
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT    

Common stock, $0.01 par value—100,000,000 shares authorized; 35,282,286 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012    353    353  

Additional paid-in capital    (54,371)   (56,934) 
Retained earnings    18,775    24,938  
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    105    (79) 

    
 

   
 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT    (35,138)   (31,722) 
    

 
   

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT   $ 126,864   $ 134,195  
    

 

   

 



VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
GAAP TO ADJUSTED EBITDA RECONCILIATION

(in thousands)
 

FY Ended 12-31-13   
GAAP

Reported   
Adj

Depr   
Adj

Stock Comp  
Adj

Amort   
Adj

Trans Exp  
Adjusted
EBITDA  

Revenue, net   $178,470   $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $178,470  
Cost of Revenue   $128,141   $ (183)  $ (60)  $ —     $ —     $127,898  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Gross Profit   $ 50,329   $ 183   $ 60   $ —     $ —     $ 50,572  

Operating Expenses        
Selling & Marketing   $ 31,645   $(3,970)  $ (343)  $(922)  $ —     $ 26,410  
Product Development   $ 4,873   $ (50)  $ (342)  $ —     $ —     $ 4,481  
Gen & Admin   $ 8,349   $ (219)  $ (1,818)  $ —     $ (527)  $ 5,785  
Business Trans   $ 3,864   $ —     $ —     $ —     $ (3,864)  $ —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total Operating Exp   $ 48,731   $(4,239)  $ (2,503)  $(922)  $ (4,391)  $ 36,676  

Operating Income   $ 1,598   $ 4,422   $ 2,563   $ 922   $ 4,391   $ 13,896  

Other Income        
Interest Expense, net   $ 6,626       
Other Expense, net   $ 45       
Gain on Bargain Purchase   $ —         

    
 

     

Total Other Expense, net   $ 6,671       
Earnings Before Taxes   $ (5,073)      

Tax Provision   $ 1,090       
    

 
     

Net Income (Loss)   $ (6,163)      



VTB HOLDINGS, INC.
GAAP TO ADJUSTED EBITDA RECONCILIATION

(in thousands)
 

FY Ended 12-31-12   
GAAP

Reported   
Adj

Depr   
Adj

Stock Comp  
Adj

Amort   
Adj

Trans Exp  
Adjusted
EBITDA  

Revenue, net   $207,136   $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $207,136  
Cost of Revenue   $132,795   $ (74)  $ (60)  $ —     $ —     $132,661  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Gross Profit   $ 74,341   $ 74   $ 60   $ —     $ —     $ 74,475  

Operating Expenses        
Selling & Marketing   $ 22,837   $(1,713)  $ (281)  $(748)  $ —     $ 20,095  
Product Development   $ 2,099   $ (21)  $ (122)  $ —     $ —     $ 1,956  
Gen & Admin   $ 6,153   $ (49)  $ (522)  $ —     $ (527)  $ 5,055  
Business Trans   $ 342   $ —     $ —     $ —     $ (342)  $ —    

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total Operating Exp   $ 31,431   $(1,783)  $ (925)  $(748)  $ (869)  $ 27,106  

Operating Income   $ 42,910   $ 1,857   $ 985   $ 748   $ 869   $ 47,369  

Other Income        
Interest Expense, net   $ 4,738       
Other Expense, net   $ 7       
Gain on Bargain Purchase   $ (2,303)      

    
 

     

Total Other Expense, net   $ 2,442       

Earnings Before Taxes   $ 40,468       

Tax Provision   $ 14,008       
    

 
     

Net Income (Loss)   $ 26,460       


